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TO THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR THE NORTHERN DISTRICT OF
CALIFORNIA, AND TO PLAINTIFFS EMANUEL AGUILERA, ROCIO AGUILERA AND
SIMON GORO, AND THEIR COUNSEL OF RECORD:

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that Defendant Matco Tools Corporation (“Defendant”) files this
Notice of Removal pursuant to 8 U.S.C. sections 1441 and 1446, asserting original federal jurisdiction
under 28 U.S.C. sections 1332(d)(2) and 1453, to effect the removal of the above-captioned action,
which was originally commenced in the Superior Court of the State of California for the County of
Alameda, to the United States District Court for the Northern District of California. This Court has
original jurisdiction over the action pursuant to the Class Action Fairness Act of 2005 for the following
reasons:

BACKGROUND

1. On December 7, 2018, Plaintiffs Emanuel Aguilera, Rocio Aguilera and Simon Goro
(“Plaintiffs”) filed a class action complaint against Defendant and Does 1 through 100 in the Superior
Court for the State of California, County of Alameda, Case No. RG18931359 (the “Complaint”). True
and correct copies of the Summons and Complaint are attached hereto as Exhibit A.

2. The Complaint purports to assert causes of action against Defendant for: (1) Failure to
Reimburse Expenses [Lab. Code § 2802]; (2) Unlawful Deductions From Wages [Lab. Code 8§ 221-
223]; (3) Failure to Provide Accurate Wage Statements [Lab. Code § 226]; (4) Failure to Pay Overtime
[Lab. Code § 510]; (5) Failure to Provide Meal Periods [Lab. Code § 226.7]; (6) Failure to Provide Rest
Breaks [Lab. Code § 226.7]; (7) Failure to Pay Wages When Due [Lab. Code 88§ 201-203]; (8) Unfair
Business Practices [Bus. & Prof. Code § 17200 et seq.]; (9) Failure to Pay Wages [Lab. Code 8§ 1194,
1197]; (10) Failure to Provide Accurate Wage Statements [Lab. Code 8§ 226]; (11) Unfair Business
Practices [Bus. & Prof. Code § 17200 et seq.]; (12) Usury [Cal. Const. Art. XV, § 1]; and (13) Violation
of Unfair Competition Law [Bus. & Prof. Code § 17200 et seq.].

3. The Complaint seeks to certify: (1) a class of individuals who entered into distributor
agreements with Defendant and who personally performed work as distributors in California, and, who
were not classified as employees, between December 7, 2014 and the present (the “Distributor Class”);
(2) a class of individuals in California who co-signed a distributor agreement as a “spouse” or other
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similar title and who performed work for the distributorship in California, and, who were not classified
as employees, between December 7, 2014 and the present (the “Spouse Class™); and (3) a sub-class
consisting of all members of the Distributor Class who obtained loans, notes or other financing from
Defendant with interest rates above ten percent (10.0%) (the “Usury Sub-Class”). (Ex. A, Complaint, 11
2-4, 33-34.)

4, On December 20, 2018, Defendant was served with a copy of the Summons and
Complaint through personal service on their statutory agent for process. (Exh. A.) Defendant filed an
Answer to the Complaint in Superior Court of the State of California for the County of Alameda on
January 17. A true and correct copy of that Answer is attached hereto as Exhibit B. True and correct
copies of all remaining pleadings and orders served on Defendant in this case are attached hereto as
Exhibit C. In compliance with 28 U.S.C. section 1446(a), Exhibits A-C comprise a copy of all process,
pleadings, and orders served by or upon Defendant in this action.

TIMELINESS OF REMOVAL

5. This Notice of Removal is timely as it is filed within 30 days of service on Defendant of a
copy of the Summons and Complaint in this action. See 28 U.S.C. § 1446(b).
ORIGINAL JURISDICTION: CLASS ACTION FAIRNESS ACT

6. This Court has original jurisdiction of this action under the Class Action Fairness Act of
2005, codified in pertinent part at 28 U.S.C. section 1332(d)(2) (“CAFA”). As set forth below, this
action is properly removable pursuant to 28 U.S.C. section 1441(a), in that this Court has original
jurisdiction over the action, because the aggregated amount in controversy exceeds $5,000,000,
exclusive of interest and costs, and the action is a class action in which at least one class member is a
citizen of a state different from that of any defendant. See 28 U.S.C. 8§ 1332(d)(2) & (d)(6).
Furthermore, the number of putative class members is greater than 100. See 28 U.S.C. 8 1332(d)(5)(B).
(Declaration of Mike Swanson, {{ 4-8) (“Swanson Decl.”).

Diverse Citizenship of the Parties

7. CAFA requires only minimal diversity for the purpose of establishing federal

jurisdiction; that is, at least one purported class member must be a citizen of a state different from any
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named defendant. 28 U.S.C. 8§ 1332(d)(2)(A). In the instant case, Plaintiffs are citizens of a state that is
different from the state of citizenship of Defendant.

8. Plaintiffs’ Citizenship. Defendant is informed and believes, and on that basis alleges,
that Plaintiffs are currently residents of the State of California. (Ex. A, Complaint, {1 8-10 (alleging that
Plaintiffs are, and have been at all relevant times, residents of California).) To establish citizenship for
diversity purposes, a natural person must be both (a) a citizen of the United States, and (b) a domiciliary
of one particular state. Kantor v. Wellesley Galleries, Ltd., 704 F.2d 1088, 1090 (9th Cir. 1983).
Residence is prima facie evidence of domicile. State Farm Mut. Auto Ins. Co. v. Dyer, 19 F.3d 514, 520
(10th Cir. 1994). Plaintiff Goro operated a distributorship in the San Diego, California, area pursuant to
a distributor agreement with Defendant, from approximately June 2018 until November 2018.

(Swanson Decl., 1 12.) The documentation submitted by Plaintiff Goro to Defendant in approximately
June 2018 in connection with his application to operate a distributorship states that Plaintiff Goro resides
in El Cajon, California. (Id.) Plaintiff Emanuel Aguilera operated a distributorship in the Los Angeles,
California, area pursuant to a distributor agreement with Defendant, from approximately June 2018 until
November 2018. (ld., § 13.) The documentation submitted by Plaintiff Aguilera to Defendant in
approximately May and June 2018 in connection with his application to operate a distributorship states
that Plaintiff Aguilera and Plaintiff Rocio Aguilera (who co-signed the distributor agreement as a
spouse) reside in Fountain Valley, California. (Id.) Ms. Aguilera further alleges that she worked for Mr.
Aguilera’s distributorship. (Ex. A, Complaint, 119, 28-29, 89-109.) Defendant is thus informed and
believes, and on that basis alleges, that Plaintiffs were domiciled in California while working pursuant to
distributor agreements with Defendant, and therefore, Plaintiffs are, or were at the institution of this civil
action, citizens of California.

9. Defendant’s Citizenship. Pursuant to 28 U.S.C. section 1332(c)(1), “[f]or purposes of
this subsection and section 1453 [28 U.S.C. § 1453], [a] corporation shall be deemed to be a citizen of
any State by which it has been incorporated and of the State where it has its principal place of business.”
To determine a corporation's principal place of business for diversity purposes, the appropriate test is the
“nerve center” test. Hertz Corp. v. Friend, 130 S. Ct. 1181, 1192 (2010). Under the “nerve center” test,

the principal place of business is located in the state where the “corporation’s officers direct, control, and
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coordinate the corporation’s activities” and where the corporation maintains its headquarters. 1d. Other
relevant factors include where corporate executives maintain their offices, where corporate policies and
procedures are made, and where primary corporate functions are based. See Ho v. Ikon Office Solutions,
Inc., 143 F. Supp. 2d 1163, 1168 (N.D. Cal. 2001) (nerve center found to be location where
corporation's headquarters were located, where the corporate officers worked, and from where corporate
policies and procedures were made).

10. Defendant is now, and at all times since this action commenced has been, incorporated
under the laws of the state of Delaware. (Swanson Decl., § 3.) Additionally, Defendant’s principal
place of business is located in Stow, Ohio. (Id.) Stow, Ohio is the site of Defendant’s corporate
headquarters and executive offices, where its high level officers direct, control, and coordinate
Defendant’s activities. (Id.) Furthermore, Defendant’s administrative functions (e.g., finance, human
resources, payroll)are performed in Stow, Ohio. (Id.) Accordingly, Defendant’s principal place of
business is Stow, Ohio under the "nerve center" test. See Hertz Corp., 130 S. Ct. at 1192. Therefore, for
diversity of citizenship purposes, Defendant is, and has been at all times since this action commenced, a
citizen of the State of Ohio. 28 U.S.C. 8 1332(c)(2).

11. Doe Defendants. The presence of Doe defendants in this case has no bearing on
diversity of citizenship for removal. 28 U.S.C. § 1441(a) (“For purposes of removal under this chapter,
the citizenship of defendants sued under fictitious names shall be disregarded.”); Fristoe v. Reynolds
Metals Co., 615 F.2d 1209, 1213 (9th Cir. 1980) (unnamed defendants are not required to join in a
removal petition). Thus, the existence of Doe defendants does not deprive this Court of jurisdiction.
Abrego v. Dow Chemical Co., 443 F.3d 676, 679-80 (9th Cir. 2006) (rule applied in CAFA removal).

Amount In Controversy

12.  CAFA requires that the amount in controversy exceed $5,000,000, exclusive of interest
and costs. 28 U.S.C. § 1332(d)(2). Under CAFA, the claims of the individual members in a class action
are aggregated to determine if the amount in controversy exceeds the sum or value of $5,000,000. 28
U.S.C. 8§ 1332(d)(6). In addition, Congress intended for federal jurisdiction to be appropriate under
CAFA “if the value of the matter in litigation exceeds $5,000,000 either from the viewpoint of the

plaintiff or the viewpoint of the defendant, and regardless of the type of relief sought (e.g., damages,
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injunctive relief, or declaratory relief).” Senate Judiciary Committee Report, S. Rep. No. 109-14, at 42
(2005), reprinted in 2005 U.S.C.C.A.N. 3, 40. Moreover, the Senate Judiciary Committee's Report on
the final version of CAFA makes clear that any doubts regarding the maintenance of interstate class
actions in state or federal court should be resolved in favor of federal jurisdiction. S. Rep. No. 109-14,
at 42-43 (“[1]f a federal court is uncertain about whether “all matters in controversy’ in a purported class
action do not in the aggregate exceed the sum or value of $5,000,000, the court should err in favor of
exercising jurisdiction over the case[...] Overall, new section 1332(d) is intended to expand
substantially federal court jurisdiction over class actions. Its provisions should be read broadly, with a
strong preference that interstate class actions should be heard in a federal court if properly removed by
any defendant.”).

13. The alleged amount in controversy in this class action, in the aggregate, exceeds
$5,000,000. As noted in Paragraph 3, supra, Plaintiffs purport to represent two classes and a sub-class
(the putative Distributor Class, the putative Spouse Class and the putative Usury Sub-Class,
respectively). Between December 7, 2014 (which predates the filing of Plaintiffs’ lawsuit by four years)
and December 31, 2018, approximately 256 individuals had agreements with Defendant to operate
distributorships in California. (Swanson Decl., 1 4.) In the aggregate, these distributorships were active
for approximately 34,502 weeks between December 7, 2014 and December 31, 2018. (Id.) In addition,
approximately 163 California distributor agreements in effect between December 7, 2014 and December
31, 2018 were co-signed by a “spouse” or a person with another similar title. (Id., §7.) Inthe
aggregate, these distributorships were active for approximately 15,122 weeks between December 7,
2014 and December 31, 2018. (Id.)

14. Plaintiffs allege that Defendant misclassified members of the putative Distributor Class
as independent contractors, and further, that Defendant should be treated as the employer of members of
the putative Spouse Class. (Ex. A, Complaint, 11 2-3, 11, 39.) As a result of the alleged
misclassification, Plaintiffs contend that the putative Distributor Class incurred unreimbursed business
expenses, worked unpaid overtime, and, did not receive meal or rest breaks. Further, Plaintiffs allege
that Defendant made unlawful deductions from the wages of putative Distributor Class members, failed

to provide them with accurate wage statements, failed to timely pay putative class members’ final
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wages, and, violated California’s usury laws by charging interest rates in excess of the legal maximum
on loans given to some putative Usury Sub-Class members. (Id., 1 2, 26-27, 30, 41-88, 110-125.) In
addition, Plaintiffs allege that putative Spouse Class members are entitled to damages for minimum
wage violations and inaccurate wage statements. (Id., 11 3, 28, 89-109.) Plaintiffs seek attorneys’ fees
on all causes of action. (ld., Prayer for Relief.)

15.  As set forth below, the amount in controversy implicated by the class-wide allegations
easily exceeds $5,000,000. All calculations supporting the amount in controversy are based on the
Complaint’s allegations, assuming, without any admission, the truth of the facts alleged and
assuming liability is established. When the amount in controversy is not apparent from the face of the
Complaint, a defendant may state underlying facts supporting its assertion that the amount in
controversy exceeds the jurisdictional threshold. Abrego, 443 F.3d at 682-83.

16. Labor Code § 2802. Labor Code section 2802(a) provides that, “An employer shall
indemnify his or her employee for all necessary expenditures or losses incurred by the employee in
direct consequence of the discharge of his or her duties, or of his or her obedience to the directions of
the employer[.]”

17.  The Complaint alleges that members of the Distributor Class “incurred business expenses
on [Defendant’s] behalf [and] were never reimbursed because they were misclassified as independent
contractors under [Defendant’s] uniform Distributor Agreement. (Ex. A, Complaint, 1 43.)

18.  The alleged limitations period for the Distributor Class’s potential claims under Labor
Code section 2802 would be from December 7, 2014 (four years before the Complaint was filed?) to the
present. As noted in Paragraph 14, supra, between December 7, 2014 and December 31, 2018,
approximately 256 individuals had agreements with Defendant to operate distributorships in California
(Swanson Decl., 14.) Moreover, in the aggregate, these distributorships were active for approximately

34,502 weeks between December 7, 2014 and December 31, 2018. (Id.)

! Plaintiffs’ Business & Professions Code section 17200 (“UCL”) claim is premised, in part, on
unreimbursed business expenses; a four year statute of limitations is therefore applicable for purposes of
determining the amount in controversy. See Bus. & Prof. Code § 17208.
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19. Plaintiffs allege that putative Distributor Class members were required to incur the
expense of payments for vehicles used in their work (known as “mobile stores”), and further, that
Defendant did not reimburse them for these payments. (Ex. A, Complaint, {1 15, 27.)

20. In approximately 2017, which is roughly the mid-point of the alleged class period,
Defendant estimated in its Franchise Disclosure Document (“FDD”) that the start-up cost of a “mobile
store” to distributors was between $5,000 and $125,000. (Swanson Decl., 19, Ex. 1.) The median of
$5,000 and $125,000 and $125,000 is $65,000. Assuming each of the 256 individuals who had
distributor agreements with Defendant in California during the relevant time period incurred the median
expense of $65,000 associated with the procurement of a “mobile store,” the alleged amount in
controversy for just this facet of the expense reimbursement claim would be $16,640,000 (256
individuals x $65,000), which alone exceeds the amount in controversy required under CAFA.

21. Plaintiffs also allege that putative Distributor Class members were not reimbursed for
mileage. (Ex. A, Complaint, 1 27.) They further allege that these individuals engage in extensive travel
through their work, including “weekly in-person customer sales calls,” “customer deliveries” and “on-
site advertising” within a defined geographic territory. (I1d., 11 2, 15, 17.)

22, In 2017, which is roughly the mid-point of the class period, the IRS’s standard rate for
mileage reimbursement was $0.545 per mile. See https://www.irs.gov/newsroom/standard-mileage-
rates-for-2018-up-from-rates-for-2017.

23.  Assuming the 256 individuals who had distributor agreements with Defendant in
California during the relevant time period traveled 125 miles per week for business purposes during the
collective 34,502 weeks in which they had distributor agreements with Defendant, the alleged amount in
controversy for this facet of the expense reimbursement claim would be $2,350,448.75 [(34,502 weeks x
125) x $0.545].

24.  Although Defendant denies Plaintiffs’ allegations or that they or the putative Distributor
Class are entitled to any relief, based solely on the forgoing calculations for reimbursement of vehicle
payments and mileage, the aggregate amount in controversy for the putative class, exclusive of
attorneys’ fees, is $18,990,448.75. Accordingly, Plaintiffs’ claim for expense reimbursements alone

exceeds the amount in controversy required under CAFA.
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25. Labor Code § 221. Labor Code section 221 provides that, “It shall be unlawful for any
employer to collect or receive from an employee any part of wages theretofore paid by said employer to
said employee.”

26. Plaintiffs allege that Defendant made numerous deductions from the wages of putative
Distributor Class members, including, for example, for initial franchise fees, software licensing fees, and
other expenses. (Ex. A, Complaint, 11 26, 50.)

27.  The alleged limitations period for the Distributor Class’s potential claims under Labor
Code section 221 would be from December 7, 2014 (four years before the Complaint was filed?) to the
present. As noted supra, approximately 256 individuals had agreements with Defendant to operate
distributorships in California. (Swanson Decl., 1 4.) In the aggregate, these distributorships were active
for approximately 34,502 weeks between December 7, 2014 and December 31, 2018. (Id.)

28. In approximately 2017, which is roughly the mid-point of the alleged class period,
Defendant stated in its FDD that the cost of an initial franchise fee to distributors was $7,000. (Swanson
Decl., 1 10, Ex. 1.) Assuming each of the 256 individuals who had distributor agreements with
Defendant in California during the relevant time period had $7,000 “deducted from their wages” for
their initial franchise fee, the alleged amount in controversy for just this facet of the unlawful deductions
claim would be $1,792,000 (256 individuals x $7,000).

29. Labor Code § 226. Labor Code section 226(e) provides that, “An employee suffering
injury as a result of a knowing and intentional failure by an employer to [provide compliant wage
statements] is entitled to recover the greater of all actual damages or fifty dollars ($50) for the initial pay
period in which a violation occurs and one hundred dollars ($100) per employee for each violation in a
subsequent pay period, not to exceed an aggregate penalty of four thousand dollars ($4,000)[.]”

30. Plaintiffs allege that Defendant did not provide accurate wage statements to Plaintiffs,
nor the putative members of the Distributor Class or the Spouse Class. (Ex. A, Complaint, {{ 52-56, 94-
98.)

2 Plaintiffs’ UCL claim is premised, in part, on purportedly unlawful deductions; a four year statute of
limitations is therefore applicable for purposes of calculating the amount in controversy. See Bus. &
Prof. Code § 17208.
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31.  The alleged limitations period for the putative Distributor Class’s potential claims under
Labor Code section 226 would be from December 7, 2017 (one year before the Complaint was filed®) to
the present.

32. Between December 7, 2017 and December 31, 2018, approximately 198 individuals had
agreements with Defendant to operate distributorships in California. (Swanson Decl., 1 6.)

33. Between December 7, 2017 and December 31, 2018, the 198 members of the putative
Distributor Class worked approximately 14,927 biweekly periods. Thus, assuming for this exercise that
wage statements were issued biweekly, the amount in controversy for Plaintiffs’ third cause of action for
wage statement penalties is $1,482,800 [($100 x 14,927 biweekly periods) - ($50 for the initial biweekly
periods x 198 initial biweekly periods)].

34. From December 7, 2017 to the present, there are approximately 121 individuals who co-
signed distributor agreements with Defendant in California as a spouse or another similar title.

(Swanson Decl., 1 8.)

35. Between December 7, 2017 and December 31, 2018, the 121 members of the putative
Spouse Class worked approximately 6,354 biweekly periods. Thus, assuming for this exercise that wage
statements were issued biweekly, the amount in controversy for Plaintiffs’ tenth cause of action for wage
statement penalties is $629,350 [($100 x 6,354 biweekly periods) - ($50 for the initial biweekly periods
x 121 initial biweekly periods)].

36. Unpaid Overtime Compensation. Labor Code section 510 provides that, “Any work in
excess of eight hours in one workday and any work in excess of 40 hours in any one workweek...shall
be compensated at the rate of no less than twice the regular rate of pay for an employee.”

37. Plaintiffs allege that members of the putative Distributor Class “work well over 8 hours,
five days per week, and well over 40 hours per week to complete the work assigned to them by
[Defendant],” but do not receive overtime compensation. (Ex. A, Complaint, {1 2, 60.)

38. For purposes of this exercise, Defendant assumes (but does not admit) that, consistent
with Plaintiffs” allegation that such individuals work “well over 8 hours, five days per week,” members

of the putative Distributor Class worked 9.5 hours per day, five days a week, meaning they would be

3 See Cal. Code Civ. Proc. § 340(a).
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entitled to 7.5 hours of overtime compensation per week (1.5 hours x 5 days). Moreover, Defendant
assumes that these individuals earned $10.00 per hour, which is the California minimum wage in effect
in 2017 (which is roughly the mid-point of the alleged class period). See
https://www.dir.ca.gov/iwc/MinimumWageHistory.htm.

39. The distributorships operated by the approximately 256 members of the putative
Distributor Class were active for approximately 34,502 weeks between December 7, 2014 and
December 31, 2018. (Swanson Decl., 1 4.) Assuming that allegedly unpaid time worked by the
individuals in California who had distributor agreements with Defendant during the four year statutory
period would be paid at the overtime rate, the reasonable estimate of the amount in controversy for
Plaintiffs’ fourth cause of action is $3,881,475 [($10.00 x 1.5 x 34,502 weeks * 7.5 hours)].

40. Unpaid Meal and Rest Period Compensation. Plaintiffs allege that Defendant did not
provide members of the putative Distributor Class with meal or rest breaks, nor with compensation in
lieu of breaks. (Ex. A, Complaint, {1 66, 71.) They seek premiums for each allegedly missed meal and
rest period by each putative class member. (Id., 1167, 72.)

41. Labor Code section 226.7 requires employers to pay an extra hour’s pay to employees
who are not provided a meal period or a rest period. Case law makes clear that an employee is entitled
to an additional hour’s wages per day, for both a rest and meal period violation each day. Lyon v. W.W.
Grainger, Inc., 2010 WL 1753194, *4 (N.D. Cal. Apr. 29, 2010) (noting that Labor Code section 226.7
provides recovery for one meal break violation per work day and one rest break violation per work day).

42. Plaintiffs allege that members of the putative Distributor Class “work well over 8 hours,
five days per week.” (Ex. A, Complaint, 1 60.) Accordingly, it is reasonable to assume that each of the
256 putative class members (see Swanson Decl., § 4) seeks payment of 10 hours of premium pay for
allegedly missed meal and rest periods per week (5 meal period premiums and 5 rest period premiums)
during the alleged class period.* See Cal. Lab. Code § 512(a) (employer must provide meal period if
employee works more than five hours); 8 Cal. Code Regs. 11040 § 12 (employer must provide rest

period for every four hours of work, or substantial fraction thereof); Lyon, 2010 WL 1753194 at *4

4 Plaintiffs’ UCL claim is premised, in part, on allegedly missed meal and rest periods, and a four year
statute of limitations is therefore applicable for purposes of assessing the amount in controversy. See
Bus. & Prof. Code § 17208.
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(noting that Labor Code section 226.7 provides recovery for one meal break violation per work day and
one rest break violation per work day). Moreover, for purposes of this exercise, Defendant assumes that
these individuals earned $10.00 per hour, which is the California minimum wage in effect in 2017
(which is roughly the mid-point of the alleged class period). (See Paragraph 39, supra.)

43. Therefore, based on Plaintiffs” allegations that members of the putative Distributor Class
worked at least eight hours per day, five days per week, and did not receive meal or rest periods, the
amount in controversy on their meal and rest period claims between December 7, 2014 and December
31, 2018 is approximately $3,450,200 ($10.00 x 10 premium payments x 34,502 weeks).

44, Labor Code § 203. Labor Code section 203(a) provides that, “if an employer willfully
fails to pay . . . any wages of an employee who is discharged or who quits, the wages of the employee
shall continue as a penalty” from the date such wages were due until the date paid. However, Labor
Code section 203(a) provides that such wages “shall not continue for more than 30 days.”

45, Plaintiffs allege that Defendant willfully failed to pay all wages due to members of the
putative Distributor Class whose relationships with Defendant were terminated. (Ex. A, Complaint, {1
75-76.)

46.  The alleged limitations period for potential claims under Labor Code section 203 would
be from December 7, 2015 (three years before the Complaint was filed®) to the present. Between
December 7, 2015 and December 31, 2018, the distributorships operated by approximately 72
individuals who had agreements with Defendant to operate distributorships in California became
inactive. (Swanson Decl., 15.)

47. Plaintiffs allege that members of the putative Distributor Class “work well over 8 hours,
five days per week.” (Ex. A, Complaint, 1 60.) Accordingly, it is reasonable to assume that of the
aforementioned 72 former distributors seeks eight hours of pay per day for the maximum penalty of 30
days’ wages. Moreover, for purposes of this exercise, Defendant assumes that these individuals earned
$10.00 per hour, which is the California minimum wage in effect in 2017 (which is roughly the mid-

point of the alleged class period). (See Paragraph 39, supra.)

® See Pineda v. Bank of America N.A., 50 Cal. 4th 1389 (2010) (three year statute of limitations applies
to Labor Code section 203 claims).
11
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48. Therefore, the amount in controversy on Plaintiffs’ claim for waiting time penalties is
approximately $172,800 (72 former distributors x 8 hours per day x $10.00 per hour x 30 days).

49. Unpaid Minimum Wage Compensation. Plaintiffs allege that members of the putative
Spouse Class members “devote many hours per week to necessary elements of [Defendant’s] business”
but do not receive any compensation from Defendant. (Ex. A, Complaint, 11 4, 24, 92.) Plaintiffs
therefore damages for allegedly unpaid minimum wages, and, liquidated damages pursuant to Cal. Lab.
Code § 1194.2. (Id., 1 91-93.)

50.  Asnoted above, 163 California distributor agreements in effect between December 7,
2014 and December 31, 2018 were co-signed by a “spouse” or a person with another similar title.
(Swanson Decl., 1 7.) In the aggregate, these distributorships were active for approximately for
approximately 15,122 weeks between December 7, 2014 and December 31, 2018. (Id.)

51. For purposes of this exercise, Defendant assumes that these 163 individuals earned
$10.00 per hour, which is the California minimum wage in effect in 2017 (which is roughly the mid-
point of the alleged class period). (See Paragraph 39, supra.) Further, given Plaintiffs’ allegation that
members of the putative Spouse Class “devote many hours per week to necessary elements of
[Defendant’s] business,” it is reasonable to assume these individuals worked at least 10 hours per week.
Based on the foregoing, the amount of allegedly unpaid wages would be approximately $1,512,200
[$10.00 per hour x 10 hours x 15,122 weeks]. The amount of an award of liquidated damages pursuant
to Labor Code section 1194.2 would be an equivalent sum. Accordingly, the amount in controversy for
this claim would be approximately $3,024,400.

52. Usury. Plaintiffs further allege that Defendant charged more than 10 percent interest on
financing or loans for the purchase of inventory and other business expenditures provided to members of
the putative Usury Sub-Class in violation of California law. (Ex. A, Complaint, 1 30, 112-116.) They
thus seek to rescind all interest paid to Defendant, and, treble damages. (Id., 1 116.)

53. In approximately 2017, which is roughly the mid-point of the alleged class period,
Defendant stated in its FDD that the estimated start-up cost of a distributor’s initial inventory ranged
from $63,000 to $86,000. (Swanson Decl., § 11, Ex. 1.) Further, Plaintiffs allege that the rates charged

to Plaintiffs Aguilera and Goro “ranged from 10.5 percent to 10.75 percent.” (Ex. A, Complaint, § 113.)
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54. For purposes of this exercise, Defendant assumes that 64 members of the putative
Distributor Class are also members of the putative Usury Sub-Class (i.e., 25% of the putative Distributor
Class), and, that each such individual obtained $63,000 in financing from Defendant, at 10.5 percent per
annum, for his or her initial inventory. Assuming that the term of each such individual’s financing was
just six months, these individuals would have paid approximately $3,307.50 in interest over the lives of
their loans. Accordingly, because Plaintiffs seek to rescind not only the amounts of interest paid by
putative Usury Sub-Class members, but also, treble damages, the amount in controversy for this facet of
Plaintiffs’ twelfth cause of action is approximately $846,720 [64 individuals x ($3,307.50 x 4)].

55.  Although Defendant denies Plaintiffs’ allegations, or, that they or the putative classes are
entitled to any relief for the above-mentioned claims, based on the forgoing calculations, the aggregate
amount in controversy for the putative classes and the putative sub-class for all asserted claims,
exclusive of attorneys' fees, is at least $34,270,193.75.6 This amount easily exceeds the $5,000,000
amount in controversy required under CAFA.

56.  Attorneys’ Fees. Plaintiffs also seek attorneys' fees. (Exh. A, Complaint, Prayer for
Relief.) A reasonable estimate of fees likely to be recovered may be used in calculating the amount in
controversy. Longmire v. HMS Host USA, Inc., 2012 WL 5928485, at *9 (S.D. Cal. Nov. 26, 2012)
(“[C]ourts may take into account reasonable estimates of attorneys' fees likely to be incurred when
analyzing disputes over the amount in controversy under CAFA.”) (citing Brady v. Mercedes-Benz USA,
Inc., 243 F. Supp. 2d 1004, 1010-11 (N.D. Cal. 2002)); Muniz v. Pilot Travel Centers LLC, 2007 U.S.
Dist. LEXIS 31515, at *15 (E.D. Cal. Apr. 30, 2007) (attorneys' fees appropriately included in
determining amount in controversy).

57. In the class action context, courts have found that 25 percent of the aggregate amount in
controversy is a benchmark for attorneys' fees award under the "percentage of fund" calculation and
courts may depart from this benchmark when warranted. See Campbell v. Vitran Exp., Inc., 471 F.
App'x 646, 649 (9th Cir. 2012) (attorneys' fees are appropriately included in determining amount in
controversy under CAFA); Powers v. Eichen, 229 F.3d 1249, 1256-57 (9th Cir. 2000); Wren v. RGIS

® Notably, this figure does not include all allegedly reimbursable business expenses, nor all allegedly
unlawful deductions from wages, nor all items for which putative class members may have obtained
financing from Defendant.
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Inventory Specialists, 2011 U.S. Dist. LEXIS 38667 at *78-84 (N.D. Cal. Apr. 1, 2011) (finding ample
support for adjusting the 25% presumptive benchmark upward and found that plaintiffs' request for
attorneys' fees in the amount of 42% of the total settlement payment was appropriate and reasonable in
the case); Cicero v. DirecTV, Inc., 2010 U.S. Dist. LEXIS 86920 at *16-18 (C.D. Cal. July 27, 2010)
(finding attorneys' fees in the amount of 30% of the total gross settlement amount to be reasonable); see
also In re Quintas Securities Litigation, 148 F. Supp. 2d 967, 973 (N.D. Cal. 2001) (noting that in the
class action settlement context the benchmark for setting attorneys' fees is 25 percent of the common
fund). Even under the conservative benchmark of 25 percent of the total recovery, attorneys' fees on a
potential damages award could be as high as $8,567,548.44 ($34,270,193.75 x 25%).

58. Because diversity of citizenship exists, and the amount in controversy easily exceeds
$5,000,000, this Court has original jurisdiction of this action pursuant to 28 U.S.C. section 1332(d)(2).
This action is therefore a proper one for removal to this Court pursuant to 28 U.S.C. section 1441(a).

59. To the extent that Plaintiffs have alleged any other claims for relief in the Complaint over
which this Court would not have original jurisdiction under 28 U.S.C. section 1332(d), the Court has
supplemental jurisdiction over any such claims pursuant to 28 U.S.C. section 1367(a).

VENUE AND INTRADISTRICT ASSIGNMENT

60. This action originally was brought in the Superior Court of the State of California,
County of Alameda. The County of Alameda is located within the jurisdiction of the San Francisco and
Oakland divisions of the United States District Court for the Northern District of California. Removal to
this Court is therefore proper pursuant to 28 U.S.C. sections 1441, 1446(a) and 84(a). Defendant,
however, reserves the right to seek a transfer of venue on the grounds that: a) Plaintiffs’ claims are
covered by a valid forum-selection agreement designating an alternative forum for the litigation of their
potential claims; and b) Defendant is informed and believes that Plaintiffs are and have been domiciled
within, and worked within, the jurisdiction of the U.S. District Court for the Central District of
California and/or the U.S. District Court for the Southern District of California.

NOTICE OF REMOVAL

61. A true and correct copy of this Notice of Removal will be promptly served on Plaintiffs

and filed with the Clerk of the Superior Court of the State of California for the County of Alameda.

14
NOTICE OF REMOVAL / CASE NO.

54082077v.1




Case 3:19-cv-00321-EDL Document 1 Filed 01/18/19 Page 16 of 59

WHEREFORE, Defendant prays that this civil action be removed from the Superior Court of the

State of California for the County of Alameda to the United States District Court for the Northern
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District of California.

DATED: January 18, 2019

Respectfully submitted,
SEYFARTH SHAW LLP

By:  /s/ Eric M. Lloyd

Christian J. Rowley
Matthew A. Goodin
Eric M. Lloyd

Attorneys for Defendant
MATCO TOOLS CORPORATION
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SUM-100
) SUMMONS FOR COURT USE ONLY
: ) (CITACION JUDICIAL) O 2 DR AEeATH)
NOTICE TO DEFENDANT:
(AVISO AL DEMANDADO):

MATCO TOOLS CORPORATION, a Delaware corporation; and DOES Fp{hﬁg ABc!U';TAYX
1 through 100, inclusive.

December 07, 2018
YOU ARE BEING SUED BY PLAINTIFF:

(LO ESTA DEMANDANDO EL DEMANDANTE): THE SUFER COURT

EMANUEL AGUILERA, ROCIO AGUILERA, and SIMON GORO, By Shabra lyamu, Deputy
individuals, on behalf of themselves and all others similarly situated.

NOTICE! You have been sued. The court may decide aalnst yau without your being heard uniess you respond within 30 days, Read the information

You have 30 CALENDAR DAYS after this summens end legal papers are served on you to file 8 writlen response at this court and have & copy
served on the plainiifi. A letter or phane call wil not protect you. Your wrillen response must bs In proper legal form if you want (he court ta hear your
case. There may be a court form that you can use for your response. You can find these court forms and more information al the Californla Courts
Online Sell-Help Center (www.courlinfo.ca.gov/selffielp), your county law liprary, or the cousthouse nearest you. If you cannot pay Lhe filing fee, ask
the court clerk for a fee walver form. If you do not file your response on time, you may lose the case by defaull, snd your wages, money, and property
may be taken without further warning from the court,

There are other legal requirements, You may wanl 1o call an sttorney tight away. If you do not know an attoray, you may wanl 1o call an allomey
referral service. If you cannot afford an attorney, you may be ellgible for free legal services from @ nonprofit legal servicas program, You ¢an locate
these nonprofit groups al the California Legal Services Web site (www:lawhelpcalifomia,org), the California Courts Online Self-Help Center
(www.courtinfo.ca.gov/selfhelp), or by contacting your local court or county bar association, NOTE: The court hat 2 sintutory lian for waived faes and
costs on any seftiemant or arbitration award of $10,000 or more in a civil case. The court’s lien must be pald belors the court will dismiss the case.
1AVISO! Lo han demandado. Si no respornde denlro de 30 dfas, /s corte puede dedidir en su contra sin escuchar su version, Lee la informacion &
continuscion,

Tiene 30 DIAS DE CALENDARIO después de que le entreguen esta citacitn y papeles legales para preseniar una respussts por escrito en esta
corte y hacer qua se entrague Una cople al demandante. Une carta o una llamada lefefdnics no lo profegen. Su respuesta por escrita flene que ester
en formalo lagal correcio si dBsea que Processn sv caso en la corts, Es posible que heya un formulario que usted pueda ussr para su nespuesta.
Puede enconlrar astos formularios da fa corle y més informacidn en el Centro de Ayuda de las Cortas de California fwww.sucorte.ca.gav), en fs
bibiiotaca da leyes de su condado o en 1a carte que le guede més cerca., Si no puede pagar la cuota de presentacitn, pida al secratario ds Iz corte
que e dé un formutario de exencién de page de cuolas. Sino presenta su respuesis & tiempo, puede perdsr vl casb por incurmplimiento y la cone fe
podré quitar su sueldo, dinero y bienes sin més adveriencia, =

Hay otros requisitos lagales. Es recomendable que llame & un abogado inmediataments. Si no conoce 8 un abogado, puede llemar a un servicio de
remision & abogados. Si np pueds peger @ un abogado, es posibie que cumpla con fos requisitos para eblener servicios legales gratulios de un
programa de seyvicios legales sin fines de lucro. Puede enconfrer estos grupos sin fines de lucro en ef silic web de Calfornis Legel Services,
{www.lawhelpcalifornia.org), en el Centro de Ayuda de Jas Corfes do California, {www.sucorle,cs gov) o ponitndose en contaclo con la corte o ef
colagio de abogados locales. AVISO: Por fey, la corte tlene derecho a reclamar Jas cuotas y los costos exentos por Imponer un gravamen sobre
cuafquier recuperacin de $10,600 6 mas do valor recibifa medianta un 8cuerdo o una concesion de arbitraje en un caso de derecho oivil, Tiene que
pagar el gravamen de la corie anles de que Ia corte pusda desechar i caso,

The name and address of the court Is: CASE NUNBER;
(El nombre y direccién da ja conte es): ALAMEDA SUPERIOR COURT Pérmero d Cowo:
Administration Building, Fourth Floor ' RG18931359

1221 Qak Street, Oakiand, CA 94612
The nams, address, and talaphone number of plaintiffs allorey, or plaintiff without an attomay, is:
{El nombre, /s direccin y el niimero de teléfono del ebogado del demandante, o de! demandante que no tiens abogado, 6s):
NICHOLAS & TOMASEVIC, 225 Broadway, |9th Floor, San Diero. Q‘A 92101 (619) 325-0492

DATE: Clerk, by : . Depuly
(Fecha) December 07, 2018 (Secratario) (Adjunio)
(For proof of service of this summons, use Proof of Service of Summons form POS-010).}

(Para prusba de enirega de esta citalitn use ef formulario Proof of Service of Summons, (POS-010)).

NOTICE TO THE PERSON SERVED: Yau are sarved

1. [ as anindividual defendant.

2. [ as the person sued under the fictitious name of (specily):

3. B on behalfof (specity: (AT CO T3S CoRpofATio~

under: X1 CCP 416.10 (coporation) [ CCP 416.60 (minor)
3 ©CP 416.20 (defunct corporation) 1 €cP 41870 (conservates)
] CCP 418.40 {associalion or parinership) [] CCP 416.90 (authorized person)

[ other (spaciy):
4. [} by personal delivary on (cate):
Pm 1oft
SUMMONS Codle of Cluk Procedwe 5§ 412.20, 465

Www caurtindn ea. pov
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AGUILERA, and SIMON GORO,
mmdividuals, on behalf of themselves and all
others similarly situated,

Plaintiffs,
vs.
MATCO TOOLS CORPORATION, a
Delaware corporation; and DOES 1 through
100, inclusive,

Defendants.

FILED BY FAX

NICHOLAS & TOMASEVIC, LLP ~ ALAMEDA COUNTY

Craig M. Nicholas (SBN 178444)

Alex Tomas;mc(gSBN 2«:559?) °°.°°CL"ER"’° :Z:ow

Shaun Markley (SBN 291785
225 Broadway, 19 Floor B St T oY
San Di%;)?sg;hfoma 92101 e NUMBER.
Tel: (61 -0492 :
Fax: (619) 325-0496 RG18931359
Email: cnicholas@nicholaslaw.org '
Email: atomasevic@nicholaslaw.org
Email: smarkley@nicholaslaw,org
Attorneys for EMANUEL AGUILERA,
ROCIO AGUILERA, and SIMON GORO,
on behalf of themselves and all others sumlarly situatoed

SUPERIOR COURT OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA
IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF ALAMEDA

EMANUEL AGUILERA, ROCIO Case No.

CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT FOR;

istri r

M

@)

3

@

®

(6)

(N

®

a8S:

FAILURE TO REIMBURSE EXPENSES
[LAB. CODE, § 2802];

UNLAWFUL DEDUCTIONS FROM
WAGES |LAB. CODE, §§ 221-223};

FATILURE TO PROVIDE ACCURATE
Wage STATEMENTS [LAB. CODE, §
226};

FAILURE TO PAY OVERTIME [LAB.
CODE, § 510};

FAILURE TO PROVIDE MEAL
PERIODS {LAB, CODE, § 226.7)

FAILURE TO PROVIDE REST
BREAKS [LAB. CODE, § 226.7)

FATLURE TO PAY WAGES WHEN
DUE [LAB. CODE, §§ 201-203);

UNFAIR BUSINESS PRACTICES
|BUS. & PROF. CODE, § 17200 ET

. SEQ.);

* CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT
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Spouse Class:

(9) FAILURE TO PAY WAGES [LAB.
CODE, §§ 1194, 1197;

(10) FAILURE TO PROVIDE ACCURATE
Wage STATEMENTS |LAB. CODE, §
226); )

(11} UNFAIR BUSINESS PRACTICES
[BUS. & PROF., CODE, § 17200 ET
SEQ.);

Usury Sub-Class:

(12) USURY |[CAL. CONST. ART. XV, §1});

(13) VIOLATION OF UNFAIR
COMPETITION LAW [BUS. & PROF.
CODE, § 17200 ET SEQ.}.

DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL

EMANUEL AGUILERA, ROCIO AG;UILERA, and SIMON GORO, individuals (“Mr.
Aguilera,” Mrs. Aguilera,” “Mr. Goro,™ and collectively “Plaintiffs™), on behalf of themselves and
all others similarly situated, bring this action against Defendant MATCO TOOLS CORPORATION,

J| a Delaware corporation (“Matco” or “Defendant™), and DOES | through 100, inclusive, and alleges

on information and belief as follows:
INTRODUCTION

1. Matco is a manufacturer and distributor of professional automotive repair lools and
related equipment, ts primary customers are mechanical service professionals and the shops where
these individuals wotk.

2. Under the guise of its “independent contractor™ Distributor Agreement, Matco
obtains the laboriuf “Distributor” employces like Mr. Goro and Mr. Aguilera to carry out nccessary
services within one of its many distribution channels—mobile distributorships (i.c., Matco shops
built inte mobile trucks driven by “Distributors™). These Distributors perform on-site advertising,
sales, delivery, and maintenance-related tasks for Matco under its strict supervision and control. By
refusing to recognize Distributors as employees, Matco cheats these imdividuals out of protections

provided by Celifornia law such as overtime pay and reimbursement of business expenses. Matco's

2
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misclassification of. Distributors also robs the State of important employee tax revenue and gives
Matco an undue advantage over law-abiding competitors who bear the necessary expense
associated with employing similar workers.

3. Malco also acquires additional free labor from Disiributors” Spouses like Mrs.
Aguilera whom Matco makes personally liable for the assigned tasks and obligations set out in
Matco’s standard Distributor Agreement. Such individuals devote many hours per week to
necessary elements of Maico’s business such as making sure Distribulors have sufficient
cquiproent, that sales are properly processed and accounted for, and the like. Yet, these individuals
receive no cormpensation for the hours Matco employs them.

4, To make matters worse, Matco charges usurious interest rates on money it loans to
Distributor employees and their Spouses, like Plaintiffs, in connection with their operations under |
the Distributor Agreement, In short, not only does Matco iliegally require that Distributers and their
Spouses pay for Matco’s business expenses, but it also charges illegal interest rates on money it
loans to these individuals for such cxpenses.

5. This Class Action sccks recovery for violations of California’s Lahor Code,
Industrial Welfare Commission Wage Orders ("Wage Orders™), Constitutional usury limits, and
Unfair Competition Taw on hehalf of Plaintiffs and similarly situated Distributors and Spouscs in
California.

JURISDICTION & VENUE

6. This Court has subject matter jurisdiction to hear this case because monetary damages
and restitution sought herein resulting from Matco's conduci exceeds the jurisdicﬁqna! minimum of
this Superior Court. _

7, Venue is proper pursuant to Code of Civil Procedure, scetion 395.5, among other
sections. The wrongful conduct and liability complained of in this Class Action Complaint arose, at
least in part, in this County as some of the transactions that are the subject of this lawsuit pecurred

here and Defendant has conducted and continues to conduct business in this County.

3
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PARTIES
8. Mr. Aguilera is and at all rclevant times was a resident of California. He worked as a

Distributor for Matco in California from June 2018 through the present.

9. Mrs. Aguilera is and at all relevant ti‘mes was a resident of California. She worked as
a Distributor “Spouse™ for Matcs in California from June 2018 through the present.

10.  Mr. Goro is and at all relevant times was a resident of California. He worked as a
Distributor for Matco in California from June 2018 through November 2018,

1. Defendant Matco is a Delaware corporation with its principal place of business in
Stow, Ohio. On mformation and belief, it is authorized to carry out and does carry out business in
this County and is subject to personal juﬁédicﬁon in this County. On information and belief,
Defendant contracts with misclassiﬁt;d “independent contractor” Distributors and their Spouses who
work and reside in this County and are members of the proposed Classes (deﬁne(_i. below).

-“12. Plaintiffs do not know the true names and/or capacities, whether h;divid;;al, partners,

o'r corporate, of the Defendants sued herein as DOES 1 through 100, inclusive, and for that reason
sues said Defendants under fictitious names. Plamtiffs will seek leave to amend this Complaint \vhcn.
the true names and capacities of these Defendants have been ascertained. Plaintiffs arc informed and
believe and thereon allege that these Defendants are responsible in whole or in part for Plaintiffs’
alleged damages. |

13. At all times mentioned, Defendants were the agents, alter egos, servants, joint
venturers, joint emplayers, or employees for eaéb other. Defendants acted with the consent of the
other Co-Defendants and acted within the course, purpose, and scope of their agency, service, or
employment. All cdnduct was ratified by Defendants, and each of them.

GENERAL ALLEGATIONS

A, Matco’s Business Model

14, Matco manufactures and distributes tools and related products like tool boxes and
service equipment (“Producis”). It sells Products to mechanics, technicians, and other service

professionals as well as businesses providing these services.

4
CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT




Case 3:19-cv-00321-EDL Document 1 Filed 01/18/19 Page 23 of 59

(8]

15, Onc non-exclusive aveouc through which Matco dismibutes its prodﬁcts is through
“mobile distributorships™ operated by “Distributors” like Mr. Aguilera and Mr., Goro. These
Dismbutors must purchasc and operatc & mobile vehicle {or mobile store) stocked with Products
within a Matco-assigned geographic territory. The mobile store may only be used for the operation
of the distributorship and may not be aliered without Matco's express approval. The mobile store

and the Distributor’s uniform—which they pay for—both display the Matco brand and marks

(available at: https://www,matcotools.com/franchise/investment/):

16.  Matco also sclls and distributes its products throug.h non-mobile distributor channcls
like ecommerce (i.c., onlinc) and commercial sales represcatatives. These non-distributor sales
channcis pravide Pradness to the same type of clients Dictributors service and also scll to vocational
schoots along with wholesale customers. In short, Distributors carry out one among many sales and
distribution avenues within Matco's tool sale and distribution operation.

B. Matco's Misclassified Distributors

17.  Matco strictly controls and regulates Distributors. Distributors must follow the terms
of Matco's enerous Distributor Agrecment and Matco’s Confidential Operating Manual, along with
other written instructions from Matco. Under these operating requirements and standards,
Distributors must make weekly in-person customer sales calls to Matcos list of customers at their

worksites. make customer dcliveries, maintain Mateo's inventory levels, hit minimum sales figures,

5
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provide post-purchas¢ product support and maintenance, and use Matco's required computer
programs, among other things.

18.  Being a Distributor is a full-time job. Matco requires that Distributors personally
work full-time to diligently promote, market, and increase the sale of Products as well as Matco’s
customer base. This includes Distributors being personally responsible for all sales, collections,
inventory management, and other aspects of the distributorship. Distributors cannot outsource these
responsibilities (except in limited instances 1o their Spouses) without Matco’s approval.

19. Matco controls both.the list of customers Distributors must scrvice and the custorers
that may be added to a Distributor’s territory. Matco reserves the right to add to or modify this list
in its sole discretion,

20, 'A.dditionally, Distributors may only carry Matco products._Matco likewise reserves
the right to set the price of Products sold to Distributors and the price of Products that end-purchasers
pay, ultimately cbntro.lling what Distributors can earn from Product sales.

21.  Matco provides mandatory training for Distributors, including a multi-day
classroom-based training course in Ohio, and goes on “ride-alangs™ to ensure that Distributocs
adhere to Matco’s required customer service guidelines and other standards. Training includes
completion of Matco’s Business System Training Program. During this training, Matco evaluates
and coaches Distributors on sales,‘coﬂections, product knowledge, product display and vehicle
appearance, time management, and their business administration skills, among other things. Matco
rates the Distributors in these areas and makes plans for follow-up and improvement. It also reserves
the right to amend or modify Distributor training.

22.  In addition to training, Distributors must attend regular in-person sales meetings
hosted by iVIat'co.

23.  Distributors’ performance obligations do not end a1 making sales to Matco’s list of
customers. Distributors also facilitate delivery of products and process customer returns. Likewise,
they carry out and fulfill Maico’s warranty and repair obligations on Products sold to customers in
their territory. Matco broadly reserves its right to amend or modify its repair and warranty promises

to customers that Distributors must carry out. No compensation is paid for these non-salcs based
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services, After allocating for these, among other, noo-sales tasks, Distributors spend less than half
of their working hours devoted to sales and cannot qualify for any sort of outside sales or other
excmption under California law,

24, Matco broadly reserves the right to terminate Distributors. For example, Matco may
terminate a Distributor for selling to customers that are not on Matco’s list of customers, even if the
customer is within the Distributor’s territory. Jt can also terminate Distributors for becémn'ng
disabled and unable to meet performance obligations for a given period of time. Where a Distributor
fails to comply with any of Matco’s onerous standards, Matco also retains the unlimited right to take
“other action” “in lieu of termination” as it deems appropriate.

25.  Distnbutors and Spouses sign 10 y‘eér, renewable terms with Matco.

C. Matco’s IHegal Deductions and Failure to Reimburse

26.  Distributors pay for the right to work for Matco, This includes, but is not limited 1o,
paying an “initza} fee” upon becominé a Distributor, paying for training and the cost of attending
training in Ohin, paymp in “restock” returned Products that are not purchased and/or arc returncd by
Matco’s customers, paying for shipping and handling of Produc&, and paying softwarc and licensing
fees.. ‘

27.  Distributors also shoulder many other unreimbursed business expenses for Matco
mcludmg but not limited to fuel/mlleag,e travel and meals, clothing and uniforms, mobile
distribuiorship truck payments, and business, vehicle, and health insurance.

D.  Spouse Obligations under Matco’s Distributor Agreement

28.  As signatories to the Distributor Agreement, Spouses remain equally responsible for
carrying out and are bound by the Distributor Agreement and related Maico service standards
described above. Matco specificaily tasks “Spouses,” fike Mrs. Aguilera, with assisting Distributors
with certain “back-end” operational aspects of the distributorship and Spouses remain financially
liable for amounts owed 10 Matco.

23, Mrs, Aguilera, like other Spouses, assists with inventory, accounting, orders, and

other aspects of the distributorship apart from the day-to-day in the field operations carried out by
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Distributors like Mr. Aguilera. This occupies many hours of the Spouses’ time cach weck, yet these
individuals do not receive any compensation from Matco.

E. Matco’s Usurious Lending

30.  In connection with the sale of distributorships, Matco encourages Distributors and
Spouses like Plaintiffs to obtain financing for the purchase of Product inventory and other busines;s
expenses throngh Matco. Matco charges over 10% interest on these loans to Distributors i violation
of C_alifomia law. California’s usury limit under Article XV, section | of the California Constitution,
is the higher of 10 percent, or 5 percent plus the prevailing rate of the Federat Reserve Bank. For the
statutory periods at issue herc, the cap has always been 10 percent.

31,  Matco ié not exempt from California’s usury caps.

CLASS ALLEGATIONS

32.  Pursuant to C‘ode‘of Givil Procedure, section 382, Plaintiffs bring this lawsuit as a
class action on behalf of themselves and all other similarly situated members of the Classes, defined
below. This action satisfies the ascertainability, numerosity, commonality, typicality, adequacy,
predominance, and superiority requiremenis of class actiong.

33 Class Period. The Class Period shall be defined as: from four years precoding the
date that the first Complaint in this action is filed, until the full resolution of this action, plus any
time that may be attributed to equitable or other forms of tolling,

34.  Plaintiffs seck to represent the following Classes of persons: _

. Mr. Goro and Mr. Aguilera seek to represent the Distributor Class: All
mdividuals during the Class Period who personally worked as “Distribuiors,”
or under any similar title, for Matco in California and who were not classified
as employecs.

ii. Mrs. Aguilera seeks to represent the Spouse Class: All individuals during the
Class Period who co-sigtned a Matco Distributor Agreement or similar

* document as a “Spouse™ or similar title and who performed work for the

distributorship in California.

e
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1ii, Mr. Goro and Mr. Aguilera seek to represent the Usury Sub-Class: All
members of the Distributor Class who obtained loans, notes, or similar
financing from Maico and paid intercst at any rate above 10,0%.

35.  These Classes do not include Defendant, its officers, and/or its directors; the Judge
to whom this case is assigned; or the Judge’s immediate family or staff.

36.  Plaintiffs reserve the right to amend the above Class and to add additional classes and
subclasses as appropriate based on investigation, discovery, and the specific theories of liability, |
among other reasons.

37, Numerosity, The potential members of each Class as defined are so numerous that
joinder of all the members is impracticable. While the precise number of the members of each Class
has not been determined, Plaintiffs are informed and believe that there are hundreds of individuals
meeting the definition of each Class. Defendant has access to data sufficient to identify the members
of the Class.. ‘

38.  Adequacy of Representation. The named Plaintiffs are fully preparcd' to take all
nccessary sieps to fawrly and adequately represent the intcrests of the Classes defined above.
Plaintiffs’ attorneys are ready, willing, and able to fully and adequately reprosent the Classes and
individual Plaintiffs. Plaintiffs’ attomeys are highly expenienced in employment Class action
litigation. Plaintiffs intend to prosecute this action vig(;rously.

3%, Common Quesfions of Law and Fact. There are predominant common qucstions
and answers of law and fact and a community of interest amongst Plaintiffs and the claims of each
Class as follows:

i. Distributor Class:
a. . Whether Defendant misclassified Distributors as “independent
contractors” instead of employees;
b. Whether Defendant failed to reimburse Distributors for expenses;
() Whether Defendant made illegal deductions from Distributors

earnings;

: 9
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d. Whether Distributors are outside sales exempt employees (to the
extent the Court finds they are employees);

e. Whether Defendant properly provided meal and rest breaks to
Distributors;

f. Whether Defendant paid Distributors all wages when due;

g Whether Defendant provided proper wage statements to D‘istn'butors ;

h. Whether Defendant failed to properly pay Distributors overtime; and

i Whether Dcfendants engaged in an unlawful, unfair, and/or fraudulent
business practice or act in violation of Business and Professions Code,
section 17200 e/ seq. as it relates to Distributors,

. Spouse Class: '

a. Whether Defendant is the “employer™ of Spouses under California law
(i.e, whether Matco engaged Spouses, controlled Spouses’
wagesthours/warking conditidns_. or suffered or permitted Spouses to
work); .

b. Whether Defendant failed to pay for all hours worked by Spouses:

c.  Whether Defendant paid Spouses alt wages when due;

d. Whether Defendant provided proper wage statements to Spouses; flnd

e. Whether Defendant engaged in an unlawful, unfair, and/or fraudulent

1. Usury Sub-Class:

a.
California’s Constitution and statutory usury limits; and
b. Whether Defendant is exempt from usury laws in California.
a. Typicality, The claims of Plaintiffs are typical of the claims of all members of the

Classes because Defendant applied and continues to apply its illegal classification, pay, and interest

practices to all Distributors and Spouses.

business practice or act in viofation of Business and Professions Code,

section 17200 er seg. as it relaies to Distributors,

Whether Defendant’s interest rate on loans to Distributers violaic
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40.  Superiority of a Class Action. A Class action is superior to other available means
for the fair and efficient adjudication of this controversy. Individual joinder of all members of the
Classes is not practicable, and questions of law and fact common to the Classes predominate over
questions affecting only individual Class members. Each Class member has been damaged and is
entitled to recovery due 1o Defendant’s conduct described in this Complaint. A Class action will
allow those similarly situated to litigate their claims in the most efficient and economical manner for
the parties and the judiciary. Plaintiff is unaware of any difficulties likely to be encountered in this
action that would preclude iis maintenance as a Class action.

CAUSES OF ACTION
FIRST CAUSE OF ACTION

Failure to Reimburse Expenses—Lab. Code, § 2802 and Wage Orders
By Mr. Gora and Mr. Aguilera, On Behalf of Themselves and the Distributor Class
Against Matco and DOES 1-60

41, Plaintiffs incorporate by reference every allegation contained above.

42.  Plaintiffs Mr‘. Goro and Mr. Aguilera bring this cause of action as a Class action on
behalf of themselves and the Distributor Class.

43.  As alleged above, Plaintiffs Mr. Goro and Mr. Aguilera and the Distributor Class
incurred business expenses on Matco’s behalf. They were never reimbursed because they were
misclassified as independent contractors under Matco’s uniform Distributor Agreement,

44.  The California Labor C'ode,. section 2802, and California’s Wage Orders require that
employers reimburse employees for business expenses reasonably incurred. Defendant failed 1o do
50.

45.  Plaintiffs Mr. Goro and Mr. Aguilera and the Distributor Class have been damaged
by Matco’s failures in this respect in an amount to be proven at trial.

46.  Mr. Goro, Mr. Aguilera, and the Distributor Class arc entitled to recover their

damages, penalties, interest, costs, and attomeyvs’ fees based on Matco's violations.

[rest of page intentionally left blank)
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SECOND CAUSE OF ACTION

Unlawful Deductions From Wages—Lab. Code, §§ 221-223 and Wage Orders
By Mr. Goro and Mr. Aguilera, On Behaif of Themselves and the Distributor Class
Against Matco and DOES 1-60

47.  Plaintiffs incorporate each and every allegation contained above.

48.  Plaintiffs Mr. Goro and Mr. Aguilera bring this cause of action as a Class action on
behalf of themselves and the Distributor Class.

49. - Under Labor Code, section 221, it is “unlawful for any employer to collect or receive
from an employee any part of wages theretofore paid by said cmployer to said employee.” This
protection extends to deductions (or mistakes in employees’ work or other non-malicious conduct.
The IWC Wage Orders further provide that the only circumstances under which an cmployer can
make a deduction from an employee’s wage are due to cash shortage, breakage, or loss of equipinent
if the employer can show that the shortage, breakage, or loss was the result of the employee’s gross
negligence or dishonest or willful act.
- 50.  Despite this, Matco made and continues to make numerous deductions from the
wages of their misclassified Disp'ibutofs. Defendant, for example, unlawfully deducts money for
franchise fees, software licensing fees, and other expenses. | |

5t Mr. Goro, Mr. Aguilera, and the Distributor Class are entitled to recover their

damages, penalties, inlerest, costs, and atiorneys’ fees based on Matco’s violations.

- THIRD CAUSE OF ACTION .

Failure to Provide Accurate Wage Statements—Lab. Code, § 226 and Wage Orders

By Mr. Goro and Mr. Aguilera, On Behalf of Themselves and the Distributor Class
Against Matco and -DOES 1-60

52.  Plaintiffs incorporate by reference every allegation contained above.
53.  Plaintffs Mr. Goro and Mr. Aguilera bring this causc of action as a Class action on
behalf of themselves and the Distributor Class,
_ 34, The purpose of Labor Code scction 226 is to ensure the employees can determine
whether they are being paid their wages in acc;orda.nce with California law. Under Section 226(h),
“[a]n employee may also bring an action for injunctive relief to ensure compliance with this section

and is entitled to an award of costs and reasonable attorney’s fees.”
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55, Matco violated the above statute by, among other things, failing to provide accurate
gross and net wages carned and hours worked on a paystub to Distribuiors.

56.  Matco’s violations of Section 226, and applicable Wage Orders arc ongoing and will
continue until and unless this Court enters an injunction baming such violations. Plaintiffs Mr. Goro
and Mr. Aguilera, therefore, seek damages and injunctive relief pursuant to Labor Code, section 226,

subscctions (e) and (g), along with penalties for past violations, including attorneys® fees and costs

incurred.
FOURTH CAUSE OF ACTION
Failure to Provide Overtime—Lab. Code, § 510 and Wage Orders
By Mr. Goro and Mr. Aguilera, On Behalf of Themselves and the Distributor Class
Against Matco and DOES 1-60
57.  Plaintiffs incorporate by reference every allegation contained above.
58.  Plaintiffs Mr. Goro and Mr. Aguilera bring this cause of action as a Class action on
bebalf of therselves and the Distributor Class.

59.  lLabor Code, section 510, and Wage Orders require overtime pay of at least 1.5 times
an employee’s regular rate of pay for all hours worked over 8 in 2 day or 40 in a week.

60.  Distributors work well over 8 'hours, five days per week, and well over 40 hours per
wjeek to complete the work assigned to them by Matco. Despite this, they receive no overtime pay
in violation of California law.

61.  There is no exemption to the overtime laws applicable to Distributors. Once properly
allocated, Distributors spend less than half of their time on sales-related activities as defined b'y
applicable California law and are not exempt from overtime pay. '

62. Maico is liable io the Distributor Class for unpaid overtime, interest, reasonable
attomney’s fees and costs, and any related statutory penalties.

FIFTH CAUSE OF ACTION

Failure to Provide Meal Periods—Lab. Code § 226.7 and Wage Orders
By Mr. Goro and Mr. Aguilera, On Behalf of Themselves and the Distributor Class
Against Matco and DOES 1-60

63.  Plaintiffs incorporate by reference every allegation contained above.
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64.  Plaintiffs Mr. Goro and Mr. Aguilera bring this causc of action as a Class action on
behalf of themselves and the Distributor Class.

65.  Under Labor Code, sections 226.7 and 512, as well as applicable IWC Wage Orders,
employers must provide a 30-minute uninterrupted, off-duty meal period for each work shift of more
than five hours, Where an_adequate meal period is not provided, employces are entitled to one hour’s
compgnsation at their regular rate of pay.

66.  Matco does not provide for meal breaks for its Distributors and provides no such
compensation in licu of these breaks as required by law. And Distributors have not otherwise waived
their entittement to meal breaks.

67.  As a proximate result of Defendant's unlawful conduct, the Distributor Cluss
sustained damages and are entitled to recover unpasid wages, liquidated damages, intercst, applicable
penalties, attorneys’ fees, and costs.

SIXTH CAUSE OF ACTION

Failure to Provide Rest Breaks—Lab. Code, § 226.7 and Wage Orders .
By Mr. Goro and Mr. Aguilera, On Behalf of Themselves and the Distributor Class
Against Matco and DOES 1-60

68.  Plaintiffs incorporate by reference every allogation contained above.

69, Plainiffs Mr. Goro and Mr. Aguilera bring this cause of action as a Class action on
behalf of themselves and the Distributor Class.

70.  Pursuant to Labor Code, section 226.7, as well as applicable IWC Wage Orders,
c:ﬁployers must provide a |0-minute uninterrupted, off-duty rest break for each work shift of 3.5
bours or more. During these periods, an employer must relieve the employee of all duties anf;'l
relinquish all control over how an employee spends his/her time. Where a rest breal is not provided,
employees are entitled to one hour’s compensation at their regular rate of pay.

71 Marco failed to provide for rest breaks or pay Distributors for rest breaks if taken.
Matco also failed to pay compensation in lieu of these paid breaks.

72.  As a proximale rcsult of Defendant’s unlawful conduct, the Disiributor Class
sustained damages and are entitled to recover unpaid wages, liquidated damages, interest, applicable

penalties, alorneys® fees, and costs.
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SEVENTH CAUSE OF ACTION
Failure to Pay Wages When Due—Lab. Code, §§201-203
By Mr. Goro and Mr. Aguilera, On Behalf of Themselves and the Distributor Class
Against Matco and DOES 1-60

73, Plainiffs incorporate by reference every allegation contained above.

74, Plaintiffs Mr. Goro and Mr. Aguilera bring this cause of action as a Class action.on
behalf of themselves and all members of the Distributor Class who are no longer working for Matco.

75.  Matco failed to pay all wages due, including the above-mentioned missing wages that
were improperly deducted, that went unreimbursed, that were not paid-for breaks or meal periods,
upon separation of craployment as required by Labor Code sccﬁ'ons 20! through 203. As such, Mr.
Goro, Mr. Aguilera, and other former Distributors in the Distributor Class are owed penalties amount
to up to 30 days wages.

76.  Matco’s actions in this respect were willful within the meaning of Labor Code,
section 203, entitling Plaintiffs Mr. Goro and Mr. Aguileraand the élass Members to recover waiting
time penalties. '

77.  Plaintiffs Mr. Goro, Mr. Aguilera, and the Class Mcmbers are entitled to recover
waiting time penalties and unpaid wages, as well as, interest, applicable penalties, attorneys’ fees,
and costs.

EIGHTH CAUSE OQF ACTION

Unfair Business Practices—Bus. & Prof. Code, § 17200 et seq.
By Mr. Gore and Mr. Aguilera, On Behalf of Themselves and the Distributor Class
Against Matco and DOES 1-60

78. Plaintiffs incorporate by reference every allegation contained above.
79.  Matco knowingly and willfully engaged in the unlawful practices described above,
which include but arc not limited to:
a, Intentionally misclassifying its employee Distributors as “independent
contractors;” |
b. Imposing unreimbursed business expenses on and illegally deducting wages
from misclassificd employees in violation of Labor Code, sections 221 and
2802;

c. Failing to pay overtime to Disttibutor employees;
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d. Failing to provide adequatc meal and rest breaks to Distributors;

e. Failing to pay Distributors all wages due upon termination; and

f Failing to provide accuratc pay statements to Distributors in violation of
Labor Code, section 226.

80.  Matco intended to, and did, profit from these illegal acts.

81.  As a direct and proximate result of the above, Plaintiffs Mr. Goro and Mr. Aguilera
and the Distributor Class have lost money or property, thereby entitling these individuals to
resiitution, ‘

82.  Pursuant to thc Busmess and Professions Code, Plaintiff and Class Members are
entitied to restitution of money or property acquired by Defendant by means of such unlawful
business practices, in amounts not yet known, but to be asceriained at trial. .

83.  Pursuant to the Business and Professions Code, the Distributor Class and the public
are also entitled to injunctive relief ;s,gainst Matco's ongoing continuation of such unlawful business
practices, including public injunctiv'e relief.

84.  If Matco is not enjoincd from engaging in the unlawful business practices described
above, Plaintiffs Mr. Goro and Mr. Aguilera, Distributor Class meml;ers, aond the public will be
irreparably injured. The exact extent, nature, and amount of such injury is difficult to ascertain now.

85.  The Distributor Class, including Mr Goro and Mr. Aguilera, have no plain, speedy,
and adequate remedy at law,

86.  Matco will continue to engage in the unlawful business practices described above in
violation of the Business and Professions Code, in derogation of the rights of Plaintiffs Mr. Goro
and Mr. Aguilera, the Distributor Class, and of the public, if not enjoined by this Court.

87.  The success of Plaintiffs Mr. Goro and Mr, Aguilera in this action will result in the
enforcement of important rights affecting the public interest by conferring a significant benefit upon
the public.

88.  Prvate enforcement of these rights is necessary as no public agency has pursued
enforcement. There is 2 financial burden incurred in pursuing this action, and it would be against

the interests of justice to require the payment of attorneys™ fees from any recovery in this action.
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Plaintiffs Mr. Goro and Mr. Aguilera are thercfore ealitled to an award of attorneys’ fees and costs

of swit under the “common fund,” “substantial benefit,” and other important doctrines.

Failure to Pay Wages—Lab. Code, §§ 1194, 1197 and Wage Orders
By Mrs. Aguilera, On Behalf of Herself and the Spouse Class
Against Matco and DOES 60-80
89.  Plaintiffs incorporate by reference every allegation contained above.
90.  Plaintiff Mrs. Aguilera brings this cause of action as a Class action on behalf of
hersclf and the Spouse Class.

.91, California law requircs that an employcr compensate an employec for each hour
worked. (See Lab. Code, §§ 1194, 1197, 1198 and applicable Wage Orders;) Agreements to work
for Jess or no money are not permitted.

92.  Despite engaging and suffering and penmitting members of the Spouse Class, fike
Mrs.. Aguilera, to work within its tool manufacturing and sales business, Matco pays these
individuals no wages.

93,  Mrs. Aguilera and the Spouse Class are entitled to recover their damages (including
liquidated damages under Labor Code, section 1194.2) penalties, interest, costs, and attorneys' fees
based on Matco's violations.

TENTH CAUSE OF ACTION

Failure to Provide Accurate Wage Statements—Lab. Code, § 226 and Wage Orders
By Mrs. Aguilera, On Behalf of Herself and the Spouse Class
Against Matco and DOES 60-80

94, Piaintiffs incorporate by reference every allegation contained above.

95.  Plaintiff Mrs. Aguilera brings this cause of action as a Class action on behalf of
herself and the Spousc Class.

96.  The purpose of Labor Code section 226 is to ensure the employees can determine
whether they arc being paid their wages in accordance with California law. Under Labor Code,
section 226(h), “[a]n employee may also bring an action for injunctive relief to ensure compliance

with this section and is entitled to an award of costs and reasonable attorney”s fees.”
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| 97.  Maico violated the above statute by, among other things, failing to provide any wage
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statements whatsoever for Mrs. Aguilera and the Spouse Class. -

98.  Matco’s violations of Section 226, and applicable Wage Orders are ongoing and will
continue until and unless this Court enters an injunction barring such violations. Plaintiff, therefore,
seeks darnages and injunctive relief pursuant to Labor Code, section 226, subsections (e) and (g),
along with penalties for past violations, including attomeys" fees and costs incurred.

ELEVENTH CAUSE OF ACTION
Unfair Business Practices—Bus, & Prof. Code, § 17200 et segq.
By Mrs. Aguilera, On Behalf of Herself and the Spouse Class
Against Matco and DOES 60-80
0¥ - 99, Plaintiffs incorporate by reference every allegation contained above.
11 100. Matco knowingly and willfully engaged in the unlawful practices described above,

12 | which include but are not limited to:

13 a, Failing to pay the Spouse Class wages; and

14 b. Faiting to provide accurate pay statements to the Spouse Class in violation of
15 Labor Code, section 226.

16 101.- Matco intended to, and did, profit from these itlegal acts.

17 102.  As a direct and proximate result of the above, Mrs. Aguilera and the Spouse Class

18 | have lost money or property, thereby entitling these individuals to restitution.

19 103, Pursuant to the Business and Professions Code, Plaintiff Mrs. Aguilcra and Class
20 | Members are entitled to restitution of money or property acquired by Matco by means of such
2t | unlawful business practices, in amounts not yet known, but o be ascertamed at trial.

22 104.  Pursuant to the Business and Professions Code, the Spouse Class and the public are
23 | also entitled to injunctive relief against Matco’s ongoing continuation of such ﬁnlawful business
24 | practices, including public injunctivé relief. ’

25 105.  1f Matco is not enjoined from engaging in the unlawful business practices described
26 | above, Plaintiff Mrs. Aguilera, Spouse Class members, and the public will be wreparably injured.

27 | The exact extent, nature, and amount of such injury is difficult to ascertain now.
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106.  The Spousc Class, including Mrs. Aguilera, have no plain, specdy, and adequate
remedy at law.

107.  Matco will continue to cngage in the unlawful business practices described above in
violation of the Business and Professions Code, in derogation of the rights of Plaintiff Mrs, Aguilera,
the Spouse Class, and of the public, if not enjoined by this Court.

108.  The success of Plaintiff Mrs. Aguilera in this action will result in the enforcement of
imponiant rights affecting the public interest by conferring a significant benefit upon the public.

109.  Private enforccment of these rights is necessary as no public agency has pursued
coforcement. There is a financial burden incurred in pursuing this action, and it would be agamst
the interests of justice te require the payment of attorneys™ fees from any recovery in this action. '
Plaintiff Mrs. Aguilera is therefore entitled to an award of attorneys’ fees and costs of suit under the
“common fund,” “substantial benefit,” and other importahl doctrines.

TWELFTH CAUSE OF ACTION

Usury—Cal, Const, Art. XV, §1
By Mr. Goro and Mr. Aguilera, On Behalf of Themselves and the Usury Sub-Class
Agaiust Matco and DOES 80-100 .

110.  Plaintiffs incorporate cach and every allegation above.

111, Plaintiffs Mr, Goro and Mr. Aguilera bring this claim on behalf of themsclves and
the Usury Sub-Class as a class action.

112, Asdescribed in more detail above, Matco provided financing or Joans to Distributors
itke Mr. Goro, Mr. Aguilera, and other members of the Usury Sub-Class in connection with their
distributorships.

113, Pursuant to the terms of the loans it makes, Matco charges interest to Distributors.
The rate charged is ofica over 10 percent. For Mr. Goro and Mr, Aguilera, rates ranged from 10.5
percent to 10.75 percent,

114, Califomia’s Constitution limits interest on loans to 10 percent. Anything above that
is illegal usury. (See Cal. Const. Art. XV, § I {the higher of 10 percent or 5 percent plus the
prevailing rate of the Federal Reserve Bank]; Civ. Code, § 1916 et seq. [as stated in Penziner v, West

American Finance Co. (1937) 10 Cal.2d 160).) Whereas many registered financial institutions, like
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federally-chartered banks, are exempt from the 10 percent limit, Matco is ros exempt under any
theory. |

15. Matco intentionally and willfully entered into usurious iending contracts in
California, These usurious rates result in substantial injury to the Usury Sub-Class.

116. Plaintiffs Mr. Goro and Mr. Agui]erzi and the Usury Sub-Class have been damaged
m amounts to be proven at tal. They are entitled to and soek to rccoup excessive intercst paid under
the Matco loas, treble damages, and/or 10 rescind the interest component of their loans cntircly.
These individuals also seek declaratory judgment that the interest provisions in Matco Joans and
similar documents are void and that Matco was not entitled to charge and should have to reimburse
all interest paid on the notes.

THIRTEENTH CAUSE OF ACTION
Violation of the Unfair Competition Law—Bus. & Prof. Code, § 17200 et seq.
By Mr. Goro and Mr. Aguilera, On Behalf of Themselves aud the Usury Sub-Class
Against Matco and DOES 80-100 -

[17. Plaintiffs incorporate each and every allegation above. '

1 18. Plaintiffs Mr. Gore and Mr. Aguilera bring thie claim on behalf of themselves and
the Usury Sub-Class.

119.  California’s Unfair Competition Law, Business and Professions Code, section 17200
et seq., defines unfair business competition fo include “unlawful, unfair, or fraudu'lent" acts or
practices. An unlawful practice violates any established state or federal law. An unfair practice,
among other things, offends or violates a legislatively declared policy.

120. The interest rates charéed to members of the Usury Sub-Class are unlawful because
they violate California usury laws, including the California Constitution, as discussed above.

12).  The interest rates charged to members-of the Usury Sub-Class arc unfair booause they
violate California’s policy capping interest on non;registered financial institutions at 10 percent.

122, Through the above mentioned acts and practices, Defendants have unlawfully,
unfairly, and fraudulently obtained and continue to obtain money from Mr. Goro, Mr. Aguilera, and

the Usury Sub-Class in California. These individuals and the general public have been injured and
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have lost moncy or property as a result of Defendant’s unfair competition. As such, they sock
restitution of these ill-gotten gains.

123, Mr. Goro and Mr. Aguilera also request, on behalf of themselves and the general
public, an order enjoining Matco from collecting interest and/or enjoining Matco's collection of
inferest above the limits set by the California Constitution. Without an injunction, Mr. Aguilera and
members of the Usury Sub-Class with ouistanding Matco loans will suffer irreparablc harm i the
form of excessive interest payments. The exact extent, nature, and amount of such injury js difficult
to ascertain at this time. These individuals have no plam, specdy, and adequate remedy at law.

124, The success of this action will result i the cnf(;mcmcnt of important rights affecting
the public interest by conferring a significant benefit upon the general public. Furthermore, private
enforcement of these rights is necessary as no public agency has pursued enforcement. There is a
financial burden incurred in pursuing this action, and it would be against the intercsts of justicc to
require the payment of attorneys’ fees ami costs from any recovery in this action,

125.  Mr. Goro, Mr. Aguilera, and the Usury Sub-Class also seck a declaratory judgment
that the interest provisions of the Matco loans are void and that Matco was not entitied to and shoutd
have to reimburse all interest paid on the notes. (E.g., Epstein v. Frank (1981) 125 Cal.App.3d 111,
122)

PRAYER FOR RELIEF
Plaintiff prays for judgment against Defendant, as follows:
1. For an order certifying the Cflasses as descnibed herein, appointing Plaintiffs as class

representatives, and their counsel as class counsel;

[JS B

For compensatory damages according to proof;

3 For cnhanced damages, liquidated damages, and penalties as permitted under
prevailing law (except no PAGA penalties ars sought at this time);

4, For declaratory relief that the interest provisians of Matco’s laans and similar
documents are void;‘

L For pre-judgment and post-judgment interest where allowable;

6. For costs of suit;

21
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26
27
28

10.
1.

For injunctive relief, mcluding public injunctive rclief, as described berem;
For restitution as described herein; -

For punitive damages, wherc appropriate;

For reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs; and

For such other and further relief as this Court may deem just and proper.

DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL

Plaintiff demands a trial by jury.

Respectfully submitted:

Dated: December 7,.20)8 NICHOLAS & TOMASEVIC, LLP

aig M. Nicholas (S 8

Alex Tomasevic (SBN 245598
Shaun Markley (SBN 291785)
225 Broadway, 19" Floor

San Diego, CA 92101

Telephone: (619) 325-0492
Facsimile: (619) 325-0496

Email: cnicholas@nicholaslaw.org
Email: atomasevic@nicholaslaw.org
.Email: smarkley@nicholaslaw.org

By:

Attorneys for Plaintiffs
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ENDORSED

SEYFARTH SHAW LLP : FILED

Christian J. Rowley (SBN 187293) ALAMEDA COUNTY
crowley(@seyfarth.com

Marthe)w@A. Goodin (SBN 169674) JAN 17 2019
mgoodin@seyfarth.com

Eric Lloyd (SBN 254390) SUE PESK
elloyd@seyfarth.com e

560 Mission Street, 31st Floor i T

San Francisco, California 94105
Telephone:  (415) 397-2823
Facsimile: (415) 397-8549

Attorneys for Defendant
MATCO TOOLS CORPORATION

SUPERIOR COURT OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA

COUNTY OF ALAMEDA
EMANUEL AGUILERA, ROCIO AGUILERA, Case No. RG18931359
and SIMON GORO, individuals, on behalf of
themselves and all others similarly situated, DEFENDANT MATCO TOOLS
CORPORATION’S ANSWER TO
Plaintiffs, PLAINTIFFS’ CLASS ACTION
COMPLAINT

V.

MATCO TOOLS CORPORATION, a Delaware
corporation; and DOES 1 through 100 inclusive,

Defendants.

Defendant MATCO TOOLS CORPORATION (“Defendant”) hereby answers Plaintiffs
EMANUEL AGUILERA, ROCIO AGUILERA, and SIMON GORO’s (“Plaintiffs”) Class Action
Complaint (“Complaint™) as follows:

GENERAL DENIAL

Pursuant to California Code of Civil Procedure section 431 .30(d), Defendant generally and
specifically denies each and every assertion and cause of action alleged in Plaintiffs’ Complaint and,

without limiting the generality of the foregoing, denies that Plaintiffs or any member of the putative

O
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classes alleged in the Complaint have been damaged in any amount, or at all, by reason of any act or
omission of Defendant, or any of its respective past or present agents, representatives and/or employees.

SEPARATE DEFENSES

In further answer to Plaintiffs’ Complaint, Defendant alleges the following separate defenses. In
asserting these defenses, Defendant does not assume the burden of proof as to matters that, pursuant to
law, are Plaintiffs’ and/or the putative class members’ burden to prove.

FIRST SEPARATE DEFENSE
(Failure To State A Cause Of Action - All Causes of Action)

Plaintiffs’ Complaint, and each purported cause of action therein, fails to state facts sufficient to
constitute a cause of action or state a claim upon which relief may be granted against Defendant.

SECOND SEPARATE DEFENSE
(Statute of Limitations - All Causes of Action)

Plaintiffs’ purported causes of action on their own behalf and on behalf of the class they seek to
represent are barred, in whole or in part, by the applicable statutes of limitations, including, but not
limited to, the limitations contained in California Code of Civil Procedure sections 338(a), 339, 340, and
343, and California Business & Professions Code section 17208.

THIRD SEPARATE DEFENSE
(Unclean Hands - All Causes of Action)

Defendant alleges that to the extent Plaintiffs seek equitable relief, Plaintiffs’ inequitable conduct
constitutes unclean hands and therefore bars the granting of such relief herein. Defendant asserts this
defense both as to Plaintiffs’ individual claims and as to any alleged class-wide claims.

FOURTH SEPARATE DEFENSE
(Estoppel - All Causes of Action)

Plaintiffs, and the putative classes they seek to represent, are estopped by their conduct to assert

any cause of action against Defendant.

2
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FIFTH SEPARATE DEFENSE
(Laches - All Causes of Action)

Plaintiffs have delayed inexcusably and unreasonably in the filing of this action, causing
substantial prejudice to Defendant, and thus, Plaintiffs’ Complaint and each purported cause of action
alleged are barred by the equitable doctrine of laches. Defendant asserts this defense both as to
Plaintiffs’ individual claims and as to any alleged class-wide claims.

SIXTH SEPARATE DEFENSE
(Release - All Causes of Action)

This Complaint is barred to the extent that Plaintiffs or any putative class member or other
putative beneficiaries of this action have given a release to Defendant, individually or collectively, in
exchange for adequate consideration.

SEVENTH SEPARATE DEFENSE

(Consent/Authorization - All Causes of Action)

Plaintiffs’ Complaint, and each purported cause of action alleged therein, is barred, in whole or
in part, because the alleged conduct of Defendant complained of in the Complaint was approved,
consented to, and/or authorized by Plaintiffs and/or the putative class members through their actions,
omissions, and course of conduct.

EIGHTH SEPARATE DEFENSE
(Offset - All Causes of Action)

Defendant alleges that it has suffered damages by reason of the conduct of Plaintiffs and/or the
putative class members, and that it has the right of offset if any amount of money is owed or due to
Plaintiffs and/or the putative class members by way of damage. Further, to the extent that Plaintiffs or
any individual they seek to represent are entitled to reimbursements for business expenses, Defendant is

entitled to an offset for any remuneration previously provided to Plaintiffs or that individual.

3
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NINTH SEPARATE DEFENSE

(Failure to Mitigate Damages - All Causes of Action)
Plaintiffs and/or the putative class members are not entitled to recover damages from Defendant
due to their continuous failure to make reasonable efforts to mitigate or minimize the damages that they
allegedly incurred.

TENTH SEPARATE DEFENSE
(Ratification - All Causes of Action)

Plaintiffs’ Complaint, and each purported cause of action alleged therein, is barred on the ground
that Plaintiffs and the putative class members ratified Defendant’s alleged actions.

ELEVENTH SEPARATE DEFENSE
(Standing - All Causes of Action)

Plaintiffs’ Complaint, and each purported cause of action alleged therein, is barred to the extent
that Plaintiffs and putative class members lack standing to assert any of the causes of action contained in
the Complaint because they have not suffered an injury-in-fact.

TWELFTH SEPARATE DEFENSE
(Unjust Enrichment - First and Eighth Causes of Action)

Plaintiffs’ and putative class members’ claims are barred, in whole or in part, because Plaintiffs

and/or putative class members would be unjustly enriched by the relief sought.

THIRTEENTH SEPARATE DEFENSE
(Waiver - All Causes of Action)

Plaintiffs and putative class members have waived their right to assert the purported claims
contained in the Complaint against Defendant. Accordingly, Plaintiffs and putative class members are

barred from recovering any relief obtained in this action.

FOURTEENTH SEPARATE DEFENSE

(Adequate Remedy at Law - All Causes of Action)
Plaintiffs and/or the putative class members are not entitled to the equitable relief sought insofar
as they have an adequate remedy at law and/or cannot make the requisite showing to obtain injunctive

relief in a labor dispute.

4
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FIFTEENTH SEPARATE DEFENSE

(Exempt Status - First through Eleventh Causes of Action)

At all times relevant and material herein, and assuming Plaintiffs and putative class members
were employees of Defendant (which Defendant denies), Plaintiffs and putative class members were
exempt from the overtime compensation requirements of the California Labor Code and the Industrial
Welfare Commission Wage Orders because Plaintiffs and putative class members were employed in an
exempt capacity within the meaning of the California Labor Code and Wage Orders, including, but not
limited to, pursuant to the Outside Salesperson exemption.

SIXTEENTH SEPARATE DEFENSE
(No Injury as a Result of Violation of Labor Code Section 226 - Third and Tenth Causes of Action)

Neither Plaintiffs, nor putative class members, have suffered injury as a result of any alleged
violation of Labor Code section 226 and they are therefore barred from recovering penalties.

SEVENTEENTH SEPARATE DEFENSE
(Not Hours Worked - Fourth, Eighth, Ninth and Eleventh Causes of Action)

Plaintiff’s claims, and those of putative class members, are barred because the hours they allege

were worked are not “hours worked” within the meaning of applicable law.

EIGHTEENTH SEPARATE DEFENSE

(Arbitration - All Causes of Action)
To the extent that any recoveries sought by the Complaint are for claims subject to arbitration
agreements between Defendant and Plaintiffs or others, the recoveries are subject to the terms of (or the
claims must be brought in arbitration pursuant to) such agreements.

NINETEENTH SEPARATE DEFENSE
(De Minimis Doctrine - Fourth, Eighth, Ninth and Eleventh Causes of Action)

Plaintiffs’ Complaint fails to the extent that, even if Plaintiffs or any putative class members
were not paid for all work performed, such work is not compensable pursuant to the de minimis doctrine.
See, e.g., Rutti v. Lojack Corp., 596 F.3d 1046, 1057-58 (9th Cir. 2010) (noting that courts have
generally found that de minimis work of less than ten minutes per day is not compensable; “most courts
‘have found daily periods of approximately ten minutes de minimis even though otherwise

5
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compensable’”); Lindow v. United States, 738 F.2d 1057, 1062, 1064 (9th Cir. 1984) (“[i]t is only when
an employee is required to give up a substantial measure of his time and effort that compensable
working time is involved”; “most courts have found daily periods of 10 minutes de minimis even though
otherwise compensable”).

TWENTIETH SEPARATE DEFENSE
(Conduct Reasonable And In Good Faith/Not Willful - Seventh Cause of Action)

To the extent a court holds that Plaintiffs or putative class members are entitled to damages or
penalties, which is specifically denied, Defendant acted, at all relevant times, on the basis of a good faith
and reasonable belief that it had complied fully with California wage and hour laws. Consequently,
Defendant’s conduct was not knowing or willful within the meaning of the California Labor Code and
neither waiting time penalties nor liquidated damages pursuant to Labor Code section 1194.2 can be
awarded.

TWENTY-FIRST SEPARATE DEFENSE
(Avoidable Consequences - First, Second, Fourth, Fifth, Sixth, Eighth, Ninth and Eleventh Causes of

Action)
To the extent Plaintiffs and putative class members were employed by Defendant (which
Defendant denies), Plaintiffs’ claims, and those of putative class members, are barred to the extent they

failed to mitigate any alleged harm by complying with Defendant’s policies.

TWENTY-SECOND SEPARATE DEFENSE

(Res Judicata, Collateral Estoppel, and Issue Preclusion - All Causes of Action)

Plaintiffs’ claims, and those of the individuals they seek to represent, are barred to the extent that
Plaintiffs or any individual they seek to represent was a claimant or plaintiff or could have been a
claimant or plaintiff in any prior litigation or administrative action in which the present claims were or
could have been asserted including, but not limited to, any prior class action, collective action, Private
Attorney General Act action, claim before the Division of Labor Standards Enforcement, or individual
civil case relating to Plaintiffs’ employment or the employment of any person they seek to represent.
Plaintiffs’ claims are further barred to the extent that the relief they seek in this action, or any claim on

an issue relevant to this action, were decided against Plaintiffs, against any individual they seek to

6
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represent, or against any individual with similar interest in litigating the matter, in a prior judicial or
agency action.

TWENTY-THIRD SEPARATE DEFENSE
(Accord and Satisfaction - All Causes of Action)

The claims of Plaintiffs and/or any putative class member are barred, in whole or in part,
pursuant to an accord and satisfaction, and/or are barred to the extent that Plaintiffs and/or any putative
class members have entered into or are otherwise bound by compromise, settlement, or release
agreements regarding those claims.

TWENTY-FOURTH SEPARATE DEFENSE
(No Knowledge of Overtime, Unpaid Hours or Missed Meal or Rest Periods - Fourth, Fifth, Sixth,

Eighth, Ninth and Eleventh Causes of Action)

At all relevant times Defendant did not have actual or constructive knowledge about any
purported overtime or off-the-clock work allegedly performed by Plaintiffs and/or putative class
members. Plaintiffs’ claims, and those of putative class members, are likewise barred to the extent that
Defendant also did not have actual or constructive knowledge that Plaintiffs or those they seek to
represent were denied any meal or rest periods. See, e.g., Brinker v. Superior Court, 53 Cal. 4th 1004,

1051-1052 (2012).

TWENTY-FIFTH SEPARATE DEFENSE

(Exemption from Usury Laws - Twelfth and Thirteenth Causes of Action)
The claims of Plaintiffs and/or any putative class member are barred, in whole or in part, because
one or more exemptions to California’s usury laws applied to the transactions between Defendant and

Plaintiffs, or, those whom Plaintiffs purport to represent.

TWENTY-SIXTH SEPARATE DEFENSE

(Improper Forum/Venue - All Causes of Action)
Plaintiffs’ choice of forum and venue is improper because Plaintiffs entered into distributor
agreements with Defendant containing valid forum-selection clauses designating Summit County or
Cuyahoga County, Ohio, as the forum for any and all proceedings initiated by Plaintiffs or Defendant.

In addition, Defendant is informed and believes that Plaintiff Goro is and has been domiciled in, and

7
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operated a distributorship pursuant to an agreement with Defendant, in the San Diego, California, area.
Further, Defendant is informed and believes that Plaintiffs Emanuel and Rocio Aguilera are and have
been domiciled in the Orange County, California area, and operated a distributorship pursuant to an

agreement with Defendant in the Los Angeles, California area.

TWENTY-SEVENTH SEPARATE DEFENSE

(Choice of Law Provision - All Causes of Action)
The Complaint, and each and every claim asserted therein, is barred in whole or in part because
the parties have agreed that Ohio law governs their relationships.

ADDITIONAL DEFENSES

Defendant presently has insufficient knowledge or information on which to form a belief as to
whether it may have additional, as yet unstated, defenses available. Defendant reserves the right to
assert additional defenses in the event that discovery indicates that such defenses are appropriate.

PRAYER

WHEREFORE, Defendant prays for judgment as follows:

1. That Plaintiffs take nothing by their Complaint, and that this Complaint be dismissed
with prejudice;

7 That judgment be entered in favor of Defendant and against Plaintiffs;

3. For reasonable expenses and costs, including but not limited to reasonable attorneys’

fees, incurred in the defense of the Complaint; and

4, For such other further relief as this Court may deem just and proper.
DATED: January 17,2019 SEYFARTH SHAW LLP
gf
W —\
owley
" Goodin

MATCO TOOLS CORPORATION
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PROOF OF SERVICE

I am a resident of the State of California, over the age of eighteen years, and not a party to the
within action. My business address is 560 Mission Street, 31st Floor, San Francisco, California 94105.
On January 17, 2019, I served the within document(s):

DEFENDANT MATCO TOOLS CORPORATION’S ANSWER TO PLAINTIFFS’
CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT

by placing the document(s) listed above in a sealed envelope with postage thereon fully prepaid,
in the United States mail at San Francisco, California, addressed as set forth below.

by personally delivering the document(s) listed above to the person(s) at the address(es) set forth
below.

H

by placing the document(s) listed above, together with an unsigned copy of this declaration, in a

D sealed envelope or package provided by an overnight delivery carrier with postage paid on
account and deposited for collection with the overnight carrier at San Francisco, California,
addressed as set forth below.

by transmitting the document(s) listed above, electronically, via the e-mail addresses set forth
below.

[l

electronically by using the Court’s ECF/CM System.

O

Craig M. Nicholas/Alex Tomasevic
Shaun Markley

NICHOLAS & TOMASEVIC, LLP
225 Broadway, 19th Floor

San Diego, CA 92101

(619) 325-0492

(5190 325-0496 (facsimile)
cnicholas@nicholaslaw.org
atomasevic@nicholaslaw.org
smarkley@nicholaslaw.org

I am readily familiar with the firm's practice of collection and processing correspondence for
mailing. Under that practice it would be deposited with the U.S. Postal Service on that same day with
postage thereon fully prepaid in the ordinary course of business. I am aware that on motion of the party
served, service is presumed invalid if postal cancellation date or postage meter date is more than one day
after date of deposit for mailing in affidavit.

I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the above is true
and correct.

Executed on January 17, 2019, at San Francil\co, Cali?rtﬁ y
\‘\v"””} . f«ﬂiﬁ

"/ 7" Nancy F'Davilla

PROOF OF SERVICE
54317815v.1
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-'-“;'c?%"?? 3&: &E%‘:l%“ﬁ% EE%'E fé:"s;ﬁ'ﬂ' |"$Baun Markiey: Esq. (SBN 201785) FoRcouaTsE oLy
225 Broadway, 19th Roor FILED BY FAX
San Diego, CA 92101 ALAMEDA COUNTY
TELEPHONE NO.: })61.9] 325-0492 . raxao: (619) 325-0496
Artorey For sy Plaintiffs Emanuel Aguilera, ex al. December 07, 2018
[SUPERIOR COURT OF CAUFORNMA, COUNTY OF ALAMEDA CLERK OF
stazev AoRess: 1221 Qak Street THE SUPERIOR COURT
wanwo aooress: 1221 Oak Street By Shabra lyamu, Deputy
ey o zecooe: Qakland, CA 94612 .
s, Administration Building C‘S'Eabé‘ﬁgémsg
CASE NAME:
Emanue) Aguilera, el al. v, Matco Tools Corporation, et al,
CIVIL CASE COVER SKEET Complex Case Designation CESEMEIER
Untimted [ Limited J -
{Amount {Amount Counter Joinder :
demanded demandad is Filed with first appearance by defendant | ¢
exceeds $25,000) 525,000 or less) (Cal. Rules of Cour, rule 3.402) OEPT:
lrems 1-6 bslow must be complaled (see instructions on page 2).
1. Check one box below for the case type that best describes this case:
Auto Yort Contract Provisionally Complex Civil Litigation
Auto {22) D Breach of contraci/wamanty (05) {Cal. Rules of Court, rules 3.400-3.403)
Uninsured motaris: (48) L1 wute 3.740 callecuons (08) ) Amirustrrrade regulation (03
Other PI/PO/WD (Personal Injury/Proparty Other colections (09) Constucilon defect (10)
Damage/Mrongiul Death} Tort Insurance coverags (15) Mass ton (40)
Asbestos (04) (] other contract (37) Securiies lidgation (28)
Product lisbility (24) Real Property (] EnvironmentaifFaxic ton (30)
Medical malpractice (45) [ Eminent domain/inverse (] insurance covorage claims arising from the
[ owerpupomn (23) condemnation (14) .above fisted provisionslly complex case
Non-PIFD/WD (Other) Tort Wrongtul eviction (33) types (41)
Business lortfunlair business practice (07) Qthar real propery (26) Enforcement of Judgment
1 civitights {o8) Unlgwhul Detalner [ entorcoment of judgment (20)
Oefamation {13) . D Cammercial (31) Misceflaneous Civll Complalnt
Fraud (16) [} Resigential (32) L] rico @ny
intellactual property (10) ] Drugs (38) Other complaint (not spacifiad above) (42)
Professionai negligence {25} Judiclal Review Miscollanoous Civil Potition
Other non-PUPD/WO tort (35) heset forfekies (05} [ Pannership and comorale govemance (21)
Employmeni Petition ra: arbiirstior: award (11) Other polition (nof specified above} (43)
Wrongful tormination (36) (] waitof mandate (02)
Olher employmen (15) [ ] Other jurtcial raview (39)

2, This case is L_lisnot  complex under rule 3.400 of the California Rules of Court. If the case is complox, mark the
factors requiring exceptional judicial management;

a.[] Large number of separately represented parties d. Laige number of wilnesses

b. [ Extensive motion praclice raising difficult or novel e, [} Coordination with related actions panding in one or more courts
lssuas that will be time-consuming to resolve in other counties, states, or countries, or in a federal court

¢ Substantial amount of documentary evidence f. [ substantial posijudgment judicial supervision

Remedias ought (check all thal apply); a. monetary  b.{v/] nonmonetary, decdlaratory or injunclive rellef ¢ E]punltive
Number of causes of action (speciy): (13): Violations of Lab. Code, Bus. & Prof. Code, and UCL; Usury

This case is L_.:] isnot & class action suit.

If there are any known related cases, file and serve a notice of relatad casg. Ou may use form CM-015)

Date: December 7, 2018 '
Shaun Markley, Esq. (SBN 291785)

[TYPE OR PRINT NAME]

oo w

NOTICE

» Plaintiff must file this cover sheet with the first paper filed in the action or procseding (except emall claims cases or cases filed
under the Probate Code, Family Code, or Welfare and Instilutions Code). {Cal. Rules of Court, ule 3,220,) Failure to file may result
in sanclions,

* File this cover sheet in addition to any cover shest required by local court rule.

* If this case is complex under rule 3.400 et seq. of the Califomia Rules of Court, you musl serve a copy of this cover sheel on all
other partles to the action or proceeding.

= Unless Ihis is a collactions case under rule 3,740 or a complex case, this cover sheet will be usad for slatigtical purposes °“'z-.. ; “J
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Aitarnay or Party withow! Anornep: » Oy '
NICHOLAS & TOMASEVIC, LLP FA! [I_;\E IIE% ABCXUI;T):})(
225 BROADWAY
19TH FLOOR. ecember 27, 2018
San Diego, CA. 92101

Teiephone No: (619) 325-0492 T .

Ref. No. or File No,: By Sonya Debaca, Deputy
s far: Plaintiff 46998

f;mr:mfa fi‘ali(u?‘dd dictal District and Branch Court, S NUMBER:
ert name of Court, and Judicial District and Branck Court;

ALAMEDA COUNTY SUPERIOR COURT RG 1 8931 359

Plaintiff: FEMANUEL AGUILERA, ROCIO AGUILERA AND SIMON GORO

Dafendant: MATCO TOOLS CORPORATION, a Delaware corporation

PROOF OF SERVICE Hearing Date: Time: Depy/Div: Case Numher;
SUMMONS RG18931359

1. At the time of service I was at least 18 years of age and no! a party lo this action.

2. Fserved copies of the SUMMONS; CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT; CIVIL CASE COVER SHEET; NOTICE OF HEARING; ADR
INFORMATION PACKET; BLANK STIPULATION TQ ATTEND ALTERNATIVE DISPUTE RESOLUTION (ADR) AND
DELAY INITIAL CASE MANAGEMENT CONFERENCE FOR 90 DAYS '

3. a. Party served: MATCO TOOLS CORPORATION, a Delaware corporation ¢/o C.T.
CORPORATION
b. Person served: GABRIELA SANCHEZ, Agent for service of process
4. Address where the party was served. C.T. CORPORATION SYSTEM
818 WEST SEVENTI STREET
STE 930

LOS ANGELES, CA 90017
5. Iserved the party: '
2. by personal service. I personally delivered the documents listed in item 2 to the party or person authorized to receive
process for the party (1) on: Thu,, Dec. 20, 2018 (2) at: 12:05PM

6. The "Notice to the Person Served” (on the Summons) was compleied as follows:
on behalf of MATCO TOOLS CORPORATION, a Delaware corporation
Under CCP 416,10 (corporation) ,

7. Person Who Served Papers: " Recoverable Cost Per CCP 1033.5(a)(4)(B)
a. GIL. LE PERSONNIC d. The Fee for Service was:
b, COUNTY LEGAL ATTORNEY SERVICE e. lam: (3) registered California process server
816 S. FIGUERQA STREET {4} Qwner
STE 100 (i) Registration No..  PS1664
LOS ANGELES, CA 90017 (iii) County: Santa Clara

¢. (213) 3270014

8. Ideciare under penalty of perjicry under ihe biws of the State of Califoriita thist the: foreyoing is true and corréct
Date: Thu, Dee, 27, 2018

(GIL LE PERSUNNIT]
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"Nicholas & Tomasevic, LLP : r Matco Tools Corporation. a Delaware L
Atn: Nicholas, Craig M. corporation
225 Broadway, 19th Floor
San Diepo, CA 92101
d L J

Superior Court of California, County of Alameda
Rene C. Davidson Alameda County Courthouse

Aguilera No. RG (8931359
Plaimifi?Petitioner(s)
VS,

Marco Tools Corporation, a Delaware corporation NOTICE OF HEARING

Defendant/Respondent(s)
{Abbreviated Title)

To each party or 1o the atlorney(s) of record for each party herein:
Notice is hereby given that 1he above-entitled action has been set for:

Complex Determination Hearing
Case Managemeni Conference

" You are hereby notified to appear at the following Court locaiion on the date and
time noted below;

Complex Determination Hearing:
DATE: 02/19/2019 TIME: 03:00 PM DEPARTMENT: 23
LOCATION: Administration Building, Fourth Floor

1221 Oak Sweet, Oakland

Case Management Conference:
DATE: 03/19/2019 TIME: 03:00 PM DEPARTMENT: 23
LOCATION: Administration Building, Founh Floor

1221 Oak Street, Onkland

Pursuant to California Rules of Court, Rule 3.400 et seq. and Local Rule 3.250 (Unified Rules of
the Superior Coun, County of Alameda), the above-entitled matter is-sei for a Complex Litigation
Determination Hearing and tnitial Complex Case Management Conference.

Department 23 issues tentative rulings on DomainWeb (wwwv.alameda.courts.ca.gov/domainweb).
For parties lacking access 10 DomainWeb, the tentative ruling must be obiained from the clerk at
(510) 267-6939. Please consult Rule 3.30(c) of the Unified Rules of the Superior Coutt, County
of Alameda, concerning the teniative ruling procedures for Department 23.

Counscl or party requesting complex litigation designation is ordered 1o serve a copy of this
notice on ail parties omitted from this notice or broughy into the action after this notice was
mailed,

Al counsel of record und any unrepresented parties are ordered to attend this Initial Complex
Case Management Conference unless otherwise notified by the Court,

Failure to appear, comply with local rules or provide a Case Management Conference staiement
may result in sanctions. Case Management Statements may be filed by E-Delivery, by submitting
directly 10 the E-Delivery Fax Number (510) 267-5732. No fee is churged lor this service. For
further information, go to Direct Calendar Departments al
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http:llapps.alameda.courts.cé.govldumainweh.

All motions in this matter 10 be heard prior to Complex Litigation Delermination Hearing must be
scheduled for hearing in Departmen 23,

Il the information contained in this notice requires change or clarification, please contact the
courtroom clerk for Department 23 by e-mail at Dept.23@alameda.courts.ca.gov or by phone at
(510) 267-6939,

TELEPHONIC COURT APPEARANCES at Case Management Conferences may be available by
contacting CourtCall. an independent vendor, at least 3 business days prior to the scheduled
conference. Parties can make arrangeinents by calling (888) 882-6878, or faxing a service requesl
form to (888) 883-2946. This service is subject 1o charges by the vendor.

Dated: 12/10/2018 Chad Finke Executive Officer / Clerk of the Superior Court

By 50““‘1&"- 9‘2:‘:'

Depuy Cherk

CLERK'S CERTIFICATE OF MAILING

| certify that the following is true and correct: | am the clerk of the above-named court and not a party to
this cause. 1 served this Notice by placing copies in cnvelopes addressed as shown hereon and then by
sealing and placing them for collection, stamping or metering with prepaid postage, and mailing on the
date slated below, in the United States mail at Alameda County, California. following standard coun
practices. =

Exccuted on 12/11/2018.

’ ‘ By 00“"‘1@“ 9‘&:“

Deputy Clerk
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Alternative Dispute Resolution (ADR) Information Packet

The person who files a civil lawsuit (plaintiff) must include the ADR Information Packet
with the complaint when serving the defendant. Cross complainants must serve the ADR
Information Packet on any new parties named to the action.

I ===

The Court strongly encourages the parties to use some form of ADR before proceeding to
trial. You may choose ADR by:

« Indicating your preference on Case Management Form CM-110;

* Filing the Stipulation to ADR and Delay Initial Case Management Conference for
90 Days (a local form included with the information packet); or

= Agree to ADR at your Initial Case Management Conférence.

QUESTIONS? Call (510) 891-6055. Email adrprogram@alameda.courts.ca gov

Or visit the court’s website at http://www.alameda.courts.ca pov/adr ‘ I'
What Are The Advantages Of Using ADR?

*» Faster —Litigation can take years to complete but ADR usually takes weeks or months.

 Cheaper — Parties can save on attorneys’ fees and litigation costs,
* More control and flexibility - Parties choose the ADR process appropriate for their case.

* Cooperative and less stressful — In mediation, parties cooperate to find a mutually
agreeable resolution.

* Preserve Relationships — A mediator can help you effectively communicate your
interests and point of view to the other side. This is an important benefit when you want
to preserve a relationship.

What Is The Disadvantage Of Using ADR?

*  You may go to court anyway - If you cannot resolve your dispute using ADR, you may
still have 1o spend time and money resolving your lawsuit through the courts.

What ADR Options Are Available?

* Mediation - A neutral person (mediator) helps the parties communicate, clarify facts,
identify legal issues, explore settlement options, and agree on a solution that is acceptable
to all sides.

o Court Mediation Program: Mediators do not charge fees for the first two hours of
mediation. If parties need more time, they must pay the mediator’s regular fees.

ADR Info Sheet.Rev, 12/15/10 Poge | of 2
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Some r;:ediators ask for a deposit before mediation starts which is subject to a refund
for unused time, '

o Private Mediation: This is mediation where the parties pay the mediator's regular
fees and may choose a mediator outside the court’s panel.

® Arbitration — A neutral person (arbitrator) hears arguments and evidence from each side

" and then decides the outcome of the dispute. Arbitration is less formal than a tria) and the
rules of evidence are often relaxed. Arbitration is effective when the parties want
someonc other than themselves to decide the outcome.

o Judicial Arbitration Program (non-binding): The judge can refer a case or the
parties can agree to use judicial arbitration, The partics select an arbitrator from a list
provided by the court. If the parties cannot agree on an arbitrator, one will be
assigned by the court. There is no fee for the arbitrator. The arbitrator must send the
decision (award of the arbitrator) to the court. The parties have the right to reject the
award and proceed to trial.

o Private Arbitration (binding and non-binding) occurs when parties involved in a
dispute either agree or are contractually obligated. This option takes place outside of
the courts and is normally binding meaning the arbitrator’s decision is final.

Mediation Service Programs In Alameda County

Low cost mediation services.are available through non-profit community organizations.
Trained volunteer mediators provide these services. Contact the following organizations for
more information;

SEEDS Community Resolution Center .

2530 San Pablo Avenue, Suite A, Berkeley, CA 94702-1612

Telephone: (510) 548-2377  Website: www.seedscrc.org

Their mission is to provide mediation, facilitation, training and education programs in our
diverse communities - Services that Encourage Effective Dialogue and Solution-making,

Center for Community Dispute Settlement

291 McLeod Street, Livermore, CA 94550

Telephone: (925) 373-1035  Website: www.trivalleymediation.com
CCDS provides services in the Tri-Valley area for all of Alameda County.

For Victim/Offender Restorative Justice Services

Catholic Charities of the East Bay: Oakland

433 Jefferson Street, Oakland, CA 94607

Telephone: (510) 768-3100  Website: www.cceb.org

Mediation sessions involve the youth, victim, and family members work toward a mutually
agreeable restitution agreement.

ADR Info Sheet.Rev, 12/)5/10 Page 20f2
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. - ALA ADR-001
[ATTORNEY OR PARTY WITHOUT ATTORNEY (Nama, Stare Bar number, and 505955
TELEPHONE NO.: . FAX KO, (Optionsi):
E-MAIL ADDRESS (Oational):
ATTORNEY FOR (Name):
SUPERIOR COURT OF CALIFORNIA, ALAMEDA COUNTY
STREET ADDRESS:
MAILING ADDRESS:
CITY AND ZiP CODE:
BRANCH NAME
PLAINTIFFIPETITIONER:
DEFENDANT/RESPONDENT:
CASE NUMBER:
STIPULATION TO ATTEND ALTERNATIVE DISPUTE RESOLUTION (ADR)
AND DELAY INITIAL CASE MANAGEMENT CONFERENCE FOR 90 DAYS

INSTRUCTIONS: All applicable boxes must be checked, and the specified information must be provided.

This stipulation is effeclive when:

*  Ali parties have signed and filed this stipulation with the Case Management Confarence Statement at least 15 days before the
; initial case management conference.,
* A copy of this stipulation has been received by the ADR Program Administrator, 1225 Fallon Street, Oakland, CA 94612,

1. Date complaint filed: . An Initial Case Management Conferénce is scheduled for:
Date: Time: Depariment: '
2. Counsel and all parties certify they have met and conferred and have selected the following ADR process {checi one):

O cCourt mediation [0 Judicial arbitration
3 Private mediation O Private arbitration

3. All parties agree to complete ADR within 80 days and certify that:

No parly to the case has requested a complex civil litigation determination hearing;

All parties have been served and intend to submit to the jurisdiction of the court;

All parties have agreed to a specific plan for sufficient discovery to make the ADR process meaningful;

Copies of this stipulation and self-addressed stamped envelopes are provided for returning endorsed filed stamped copies to
counsel and all parlies;

e. Case management stalements are submitted with this stipulation;

1. All parties will attend ADR conferences: and,

g. Tha court will not allow more than 90 days to complete ADR

anow

1 declare under penalty of perjury under the Jaws of the State of California that the foregaing is true and correct.

Date:

>

{TYPE OR PRINT NAME) {SIGNATURE OF PLAINTIFF)

Date:

>

(TYPE OR PRINT NAME) . (SIGNATURE OF ATTORNEY FOR PLAINTIFF)

— R I b
S Gounol cuts™  STIPULATION TO ATTEND ALTERNATIVE DISPUTE RESOLUTION (ADR) ot Rutse o Cou,
ALK ADRG01 e sy 1,201 AND DELAY INITIAL CASE MANAGEMENT CONFERENCE FOR 90 DAYS e
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ALA ADR-001
PLAINTIFF/PETITIONER: SASEIMEER:,
DEFENDANT/RES PONDENT:
Date;
¥ >

(TYPE OR PRINT NAME) ' (SIGNATURE OF DEFENDANT) _
Date:

(TYPE OR PRINT NAME) {SIGNATURE OF ATTORNEY FOR DEFENDANT)

Paas2eta

T upenr Sl Catarto. ™ STIPULATION TO ATTEND ALTERNATIVE DISPUTE RESOLUTION (AD R)  CaRulenot coun,
ALAADRD0Y fou damesa | sy AND DELAY INITIAL CASE MANAGEMENT CONFERENCE FOR 80 DAYS S
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The JS-CAND 44 civil cover sheet and the information contained herein neither replace nor supplement the filing and service of pleadings or other papers as required by law,
except as provided by local rules of court. This form, approved in its original form by the Judicial Conference of the United States in September 1974, is required for the Clerk of
Court to initiate the civil docket sheet. (SEE INSTRUCTIONS ON NEXT PAGE OF THIS FORM. )

MASFENY OB S CORPORATION, aDelaware

corporation,

County of Residence of First Listed Defendant
(IN U.S. PLAINTIFF CASES ONLY)

NOTE: IN LAND CONDEMNATION CASES, USE THE LOCATION OF
THE TRACT OF LAND INVOLVED.

Attorneys (If Known)

Christian Rowley/Matthew Goodin, Eric Lloyd, Seyfarth Shaw
LLP, 560 Mission St., Ste. 3100, San Francisco, CA 94105

| €A AAOEN TAETRLERA. ROCIO AGUILEARA, and SIMON GORO,
individuals, on behalf of themselves and al others similarly situated,

(b) County of Residence of First Listed Plaintiff
(EXCEPT IN U.S. PLAINTIFF CASES)

é%l S N SHeTaY ATE T e FShAR Markley, Nicholas &
Tomasew C, 225 Broadway, 19th FIr., San Diego, CA 92101

130 Miller Act

140 Negotiable Instrument

150 Recovery of
Overpayment Of
Veteran’s Benefits

151 Medicare Act

152 Recovery of Defaulted
Student Loans (Excludes
Veterans)

153 Recovery of
Overpayment

of Veteran’s Benefits
160 Stockholders’ Suits

315 Airplane Product Liability

320 Assault, Libel & Slander

330 Federal Employers’
Liability

340 Marine

345 Marine Product Liability

350 Motor Vehicle

355 Motor Vehicle Product
Liability

360 Other Personal Injury

362 Personal Injury -Medical

Liability

367 Health Care/
Pharmaceutical Personal
Injury Product Liability

368 Asbestos Personal Injury
Product Liability

PERSONAL PROPERTY
370 Other Fraud
371 Truth in Lending

380 Other Personal Property
Damage

385 Property Damage Product

690 Other

§ 157

LABOR PROPERTY RIGHTS
710 Fair Labor Standards Act 820 Copyrights
720 Labor/Management 830 Patent
Relations 835 Patent—Abbreviated New
740 Railway Labor Act Drug Application
751 Family and Medical 840 Trademark

Leave Act
X 790 Other Labor Litigation

791 Employee Retirement
Income Security Act

SOCIAL SECURITY

190 Other Contract

195 Contract Product Liability
196 Franchise

REAL PROPERTY

210 Land Condemnation
220 Foreclosure

230 Rent Lease & Ejectment
240 Torts to Land

245 Tort Product Liability
290 All Other Real Property

Malpractice Liability IMMIGRATION
CIVIL RIGHTS PRISONER PETITIONS 462 Naturalization
Application
440 Other Civil Rights HABEAS CORPUS 465 Other Immigration
441 Voting 463 Alien Detainee Actions

442 Employment

443 Housing/
Accommodations

445 Amer. w/Disabilities—
Employment

446 Amer. w/Disabilities—Other

448 Education

510 Motions to Vacate
Sentence

530 General

535 Death Penalty
OTHER

540 Mandamus & Other

550 Civil Rights

555 Prison Condition

560 Civil Detainee—
Conditions of
Confinement

861 HIA (1395ff)

862 Black Lung (923)

863 DIWC/DIWW (405(g))
864 SSID Title XVI

865 RSI (405(g))

FEDERAL TAX SUITS

870 Taxes (U.S. Plaintiff or
Defendant)

871 IRS—Third Party 26 USC
§ 7609

1. BASIS OF JURISDICTION (Place an “X* in One Box Only) I1l. CITIZENSHIP OF PRINCIPAL PARTIES (Place an “X* in One Box for Plaintiff
(For Diversity Cases Only) and One Box for Defendant)
PTF  DEF PTF DEF
1 US. Government Plaintiff 3 Federal Question Citizen of This State x 1 1 Incorporated or Principal Place 4 4
(U.S. Government Not a Party) P rineip
of Business In This State
b US.G ¢ Defend X1  Diversit Citizen of Another State 2 2 Incorporated and Principal Place 5 XS5
D, Governmen efendant Tversity .
(Indicate Citizenship of Parties in Item 111) » ) of Business In Another State
Citizen or Subject of a 3 3 Foreign Nation 6 6
Foreign Country
AV NATURE OF SUIT (Place an “X” in One Box Only)
CONTRACT TORTS FORFEITURE/PENALTY BANKRUPTCY OTHER STATUTES
110 Insurance PERSONAL INJURY PERSONAL INJURY 625 Drug Related Seizure of 422 Appeal 28 USC § 158 375 False Claims Act
arine i v — ' ithdrawal ui Tam
120 Mari 310 Airplane 365 Personal Injury — Product Property 21 USC § 881 423 Withd 128 USC 376 Qui Tam (31 USC

§ 3729(a))
400 State Reapportionment
410 Antitrust
430 Banks and Banking
450 Commerce
460 Deportation

470 Racketeer Influenced &
Corrupt Organizations

480 Consumer Credit
490 Cable/Sat TV

850 Securities/Commodities/
Exchange

890 Other Statutory Actions
891 Agricultural Acts
893 Environmental Matters

895 Freedom of Information
Act

896 Arbitration

899 Administrative Procedure
Act/Review or Appeal of
Agency Decision

950 Constitutionality of State
Statutes

V. ORIGIN (Place an “X” in One Box Only)

1 Original X 2 Removed from 3 Remanded from 4 Reinstated or 5 Transferred from 6 Multidistrict 8 Multidistrict
Proceeding State Court Appellate Court Reopened Another District (specify) Litigation—Transfer Litigation—Direct File

VI. CAUSE OF Cite the U.S. Civil Statute under which you are filing (Do not cite jurisdictional statutes unless diversity):

ACTION 28 U.S.C. sections 1441, 1446; 28 USC sections 1332(d)(2), 1453

Brief descrintion of cause:
Plaintiffs allege violations of the Cal. Labor Code and Usury laws.

VII. REQUESTED IN o CHECK IF THIS IS A CLASS ACTION DEMAND $ CHECK YES only if demanded in complaint:

COMPLAINT: UNDER RULE 23, Fed. R. Civ. P. JURY DEMAND: X Yes No
VIIl. RELATED CASE(S), JUDGE DOCKET NUMBER

IF ANY (See instructions):

IX. DIVISIONAL ASSIGNMENT (Civil Local Rule 3-2)

(Place an “X” in One Box Only)

x SAN FRANCISCO/OAKLAND

SAN JOSE

EUREKA-MCKINLEYVILLE

DATE 01/18/2019

SIGNATURE OF ATTORNEY OF RECORD

T

/s/ Eric Lloyd
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INSTRUCTIONS FOR ATTORNEYS COMPLETING CIVIL COVER SHEET FORM JS-CAND 44

Authority For Civil Cover Sheet. The JS-CAND 44 civil cover sheet and the information contained herein neither replaces nor supplements the filings and
service of pleading or other papers as required by law, except as provided by local rules of court. This form, approved in its original form by the Judicial
Conference of the United States in September 1974, is required for the Clerk of Court to initiate the civil docket sheet. Consequently, a civil cover sheet is
submitted to the Clerk of Court for each civil complaint filed. The attorney filing a case should complete the form as follows:

1. a)

b)

c)

VI

VIL.

VIIL.

Date

Plaintiffs-Defendants. Enter names (last, first, middle initial) of plaintiff and defendant. If the plaintiff or defendant is a government agency, use
only the full name or standard abbreviations. If the plaintiff or defendant is an official within a government agency, identify first the agency and
then the official, giving both name and title.

County of Residence. For each civil case filed, except U.S. plaintiff cases, enter the name of the county where the first listed plaintiff resides at the
time of filing. In U.S. plaintiff cases, enter the name of the county in which the first listed defendant resides at the time of filing. (NOTE: In land
condemnation cases, the county of residence of the “defendant” is the location of the tract of land involved.)

Attorneys. Enter the firm name, address, telephone number, and attorney of record. If there are several attorneys, list them on an attachment, noting
in this section “(see attachment).”

Jurisdiction. The basis of jurisdiction is set forth under Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 8(a), which requires that jurisdictions be shown in
pleadings. Place an “X” in one of the boxes. If there is more than one basis of jurisdiction, precedence is given in the order shown below.

(1) United States plaintiff. Jurisdiction based on 28 USC 88§ 1345 and 1348. Suits by agencies and officers of the United States are included here.

(2) United States defendant. When the plaintiff is suing the United States, its officers or agencies, place an “X” in this box.

(3) Federal question. This refers to suits under 28 USC § 1331, where jurisdiction arises under the Constitution of the United States, an amendment
to the Constitution, an act of Congress or a treaty of the United States. In cases where the U.S. is a party, the U.S. plaintiff or defendant code
takes precedence, and box 1 or 2 should be marked.

(4) Diversity of citizenship. This refers to suits under 28 USC § 1332, where parties are citizens of different states. When Box 4 is checked, the
citizenship of the different parties must be checked. (See Section Il below; NOTE: federal question actions take precedence over diversity
cases.)

Residence (citizenship) of Principal Parties. This section of the JS-CAND 44 is to be completed if diversity of citizenship was indicated above.
Mark this section for each principal party.

Nature of Suit. Place an “X” in the appropriate box. If the nature of suit cannot be determined, be sure the cause of action, in Section VI below, is
sufficient to enable the deputy clerk or the statistical clerk(s) in the Administrative Office to determine the nature of suit. If the cause fits more than
one nature of suit, select the most definitive.

Origin. Place an “X” in one of the six boxes.

(1) Original Proceedings. Cases originating in the United States district courts.

(2) Removed from State Court. Proceedings initiated in state courts may be removed to the district courts under Title 28 USC § 1441. When the
petition for removal is granted, check this box.

(3) Remanded from Appellate Court. Check this box for cases remanded to the district court for further action. Use the date of remand as the filing
date.

(4) Reinstated or Reopened. Check this box for cases reinstated or reopened in the district court. Use the reopening date as the filing date.

(5) Transferred from Another District. For cases transferred under Title 28 USC § 1404(a). Do not use this for within district transfers or
multidistrict litigation transfers.

(6) Multidistrict Litigation Transfer. Check this box when a multidistrict case is transferred into the district under authority of Title 28 USC
§ 1407. When this box is checked, do not check (5) above.

(8) Multidistrict Litigation Direct File. Check this box when a multidistrict litigation case is filed in the same district as the Master MDL docket.

Please note that there is no Origin Code 7. Origin Code 7 was used for historical records and is no longer relevant due to changes in statute.

Cause of Action. Report the civil statute directly related to the cause of action and give a brief description of the cause. Do not cite jurisdictional
statutes unless diversity. Example: U.S. Civil Statute: 47 USC § 553. Brief Description: Unauthorized reception of cable service.

Requested in Complaint. Class Action. Place an “X” in this box if you are filing a class action under Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 23.
Demand. In this space enter the actual dollar amount being demanded or indicate other demand, such as a preliminary injunction.
Jury Demand. Check the appropriate box to indicate whether or not a jury is being demanded.

Related Cases. This section of the JS-CAND 44 is used to identify related pending cases, if any. If there are related pending cases, insert the docket
numbers and the corresponding judge names for such cases.

Divisional Assignment. If the Nature of Suit is under Property Rights or Prisoner Petitions or the matter is a Securities Class Action, leave this
section blank. For all other cases, identify the divisional venue according to Civil Local Rule 3-2: “the county in which a substantial part of the
events or omissions which give rise to the claim occurred or in which a substantial part of the property that is the subject of the action is situated.”

and Attorney Signature. Date and sign the civil cover sheet.
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This complaint is part of ClassAction.org's searchable class action lawsuit database and can be found in this
post: Matco Tools Corporation Hit with Distributors Wage and Hour Class Action
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